
 

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH 
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801 
www.ryedale.gov.uk  working with you to make a difference 
 
 

 

1 Apologies for absence   
 

 

2 Minutes of meeting held on 21 October 2014  (Pages 3 - 7) 
 

 

3 Urgent Business    

 To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest    

 Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.  
 

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee  (Pages 8 - 9) 
 

 

6 Enforcement Report - 10/00156/BC - Steam And Moorland Garden Centre, 
Malton Road, Pickering  (Pages 10 - 22) 

 

 

7 Enforcement Report - 14/00015/CU - Musley Bank Stables, Musley Bank, 
Malton  (Pages 23 - 28) 

 

 

8 Enforcement Report - 14/00007/UD - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton 
 (Pages 29 - 53) 

 

 

 

 

 
Please Contact 

 
Jo Holmes/Karen Hood 

 
Extension 

 
310/386 

 
Date of Publication 

 
10 November 2014 

 
E Mail 

 
jo.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk 

 

 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Tuesday 18 November 2014 at 6.00 pm 
  
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 
 
 

     Agenda 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

9 14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton  (Pages 54 - 70) 
 

 

10 14/00947/MFUL - ATS Euromaster, 25-27 Commercial Street, Norton  (Pages 71 - 
73) 

 

 

11 14/00132/MFUL - Kingspan, St Hildas Street, Sherburn, Malton  (Pages 74 - 169) 
 

 

12 14/00950/MFUL - Poplar House Farm, Leppington Lane, Leppington, Malton 
 (Pages 170 - 199) 

 

 

13 14/00976/MREM - Land At OS Field 9525, Crossgate Lane, Pickering  (Pages 200 
- 215) 

 

 

14 13/00885/FUL - Buildings At Mount Farm, Main Street, Westow  (Pages 216 - 
278) 

 

 

15 14/00896/FUL - Rainbow Cottage, Westgate Lane, Old Malton  (Pages 279 - 291) 
 

 

16 14/01077/FUL - 44 Potter Hill, Pickering  (Pages 292 - 322) 
 

 

17 14/01081/OUT - Land At Piercy End, Kirkbymoorside  (Pages 323 - 338) 
 

 

18 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.   
 

 

19 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.  (Pages 339 - 343) 
 

 

20 Update on Appeal Decisions  (Pages 344 - 348) 
 

 



 

Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 21 October 2014 

 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 
Tuesday 21 October 2014 
 
 
Present 

 
Councillors  Mrs Burr MBE, Clark (Substitute), Cussons (Substitute), Mrs Frank (Vice-
Chairman), Mrs Goodrick, Hope, Maud, Richardson and Windress (Chairman) 
 
Substitutes: Councillor J S Clark (for Councillor TB Woodward) and Councillor D 
Cussons (for Councillor Mrs J E Sanderson) 
 
 
In Attendance 

 
Jo Holmes, Chris Osmond, Gary Housden, Rachel Smith, Helen Bloomer and Anthony 
Winship 
 
 
Minutes 

 
98 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Woodward and Councillor Mrs 
Sanderson. 
 

99 Minutes of meeting held on 23 September 2014 
 

Decision 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 23 
September 2014 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
[For 6   Against   Abstain 1] 
  

 
100 Urgent Business 

 
There was no urgent business. 
 

101 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor    Application 
Hope     6,8,11 
Goodrick    8 
Clark     8 
Maud     6   
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 3



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 21 October 2014 

 
 

 
102 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee 

 
The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations there on. 
 

103 14/00900/MFUL - Mill House, Scarborough Road, East Knapton, Malton 
 
14/00900/MFUL - Change of use and alteration of farm buildings to form office 
and small parts storage, erection of attached office building with three bedroom 
on-site managers apartment to first floor together with erection of warehouse 
building and workshop building, formation of parking and upgrading of vehicular 
access - all works to form a commercial dealership for agricultural equipment. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Approval delegated to Head of Planning & Housing 
subject to views of outstanding consultees and mitigation conditions. 
 
[For 9    Against 0   Abstain 0] 
 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope and Maud 
declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.  
 

104 14/00914/MFUL - Fosters Wold Farm, Weaverthorpe, Malton 
 
14/00914/MFUL - Erection of 2 no. broiler units to house a maximum of 80,000 
poultry together with associated control rooms, boiler house, 6 no. feed bins 
and area of hardstanding. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended and an 
additional condition relating to archeology. 
 
[For 8   Against 0   Abstain1] 
 

 
 

105 14/00613/OUT - Land Off Kirk Balk Lane, Claxton 
 
14/00613/OUT - Erection of an agricultural worker's dwelling (site area 0.1ha) 
(revised details to refusal 13/00037/OUT dated 31.05.2013). 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 21 October 2014 

 
 

 

Decision 
 

DEFERRED 
 
[For 9    Against 0   Abstain 0] 
 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Clark, 
and Mrs Goodrick declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial 
interest.  
 

106 14/00856/FUL - Norton Bowls Club, Bowling Lane, Norton 
 
14/00856/FUL - Change of use and alteration of part of bowls club building from 
D2 Use (Assembly and Leisure) to D1 Use (Non-residential institutions) for use 
of a dance school and a pre school playgroup to include parking and dedicated 
outdoor play space for the pre-school playgroup. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
[For 9    Against 0  Abstain 0] 
 

 
 

107 14/00882/HOUSE - Lilac Cottage, Main Street, Wombleton 
 
14/00882/HOUSE - Erection of two storey rear extension following demolition of 
existing single storey rear extension. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended including 
obscure glazing of stairwell window. 
 
[For 9    Against 0  Abstain 0] 
  

 
108 14/00883/HOUSE - Nesslyn, West End, Sheriff Hutton 

 
14/00883/HOUSE - Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to 
the west and north elevations and entrance porch to the south elevation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 21 October 2014 

 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
[For 9    Against 0   Abstain 0] 

 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Hope declared a 
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 
 

109 14/00889/HOUSE - Green View, Page Lane, Wombleton 
 
14/00889/HOUSE - Retention of single storey extension to north elevation, 
boundary wall to east elevation and external cladding and installation of 15no. 
solar panels on the west roofslope and flat roof. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
[For 9    Against 0  Abstain 0] 
   

 
110 14/00909/HOUSE - Newlands, 4 St Peters Crescent, Norton 

 
14/00909/HOUSE - Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include 
integral garage with storage above. 
 

Decision 
 

DEFERRED 
 
[For 9    Against 0   Abstain 0] 
 

 
111 14/01039/FUL - Ryedale Swimming Pool, Mill Lane, Pickering 

 
14/01039/FUL - Erection of single storey linked extension to north (front) 
elevation to form fitness centre with use of part of adjacent existing changing 
rooms as a gym. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended and expiry 
of consultation period and no objection from Pickering Town Council. 
 
[For 9    Against 0   Abstain 0] 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 21 October 2014 

 
 

 
112 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

 
There was no urgent business. 
 

113 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. 
 
The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of 
Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of Delegated Decisions. 
 

114 Update on Appeal Decisions 
 
Members’ were advised of the following appeal decisions. 
 
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/A/14/2211925 – High Barn, West Lutton, Malton  
 
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/A/14/2214575 – Jubilee Farm, Helerthorpe, Malton 
 
 

Meeting Closed at 8.30pm. 
 

Page 7



 APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE -  18/11/14 

 9 

 Application No: 14/00949/FUL 

 Application Site: Canadian Fields  Gale Lane Nawton York YO62 7SD 

 Proposal: Erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp cafe  
 (retrospective application). 

 10 

 Application No: 14/00947/MFUL 

 Application Site: ATS Euromaster 25 - 27 Commercial Street Norton Malton North Yorkshire  
 YO17 9HX  

 Proposal: Erection of 36no. one bedroom apartments. 20no. two bedroom apartments,  
 3no. three bedroom dwellings and 2no. four bedroom apartments with  
 undercroft parking, private and communal amenity areas, landscaping,  
 management office, alteration to existing vehicular access and erection of street  
 front commercial unit with one bed studio above. 

 11 

 Application No: 14/00132/MFUL 

 Application Site: Kingspan St Hildas Street Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8PQ  

 Proposal: Over cladding of existing insulated roofs with Kingspan insulated roof sheet  
 and installation of a 6mw solar PV system onto the new roof sheeting (55,  
 700m² of solar PV panels). 

 12 

 Application No: 14/00950/MFUL 

 Application Site: Poplar House Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North Yorkshire  
 YO17 9RL  

 Proposal: Excavation of clay-lined slurry lagoon 

 13 

 Application No: 14/00976/MREM 

 Application Site: Land At OS Field 9525 Crossgate Lane Pickering North Yorkshire   

 Proposal: Erection of a retirement community of 168no.assisted living units comprising  
 50no. two bedroom and 40no. one bedroom care suites/apartments and 70no.  
 two bedroom and 8no. one bedroom bungalows together with associated  
 community facilities, access, parking and landscaping (outline approval  
 13/00016/MOUT dated 21.01.2014 refers). 

Agenda Item 5

Page 8



 APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE -  18/11/14 

 14 

 Application No: 13/00885/FUL 

 Application Site: Buildings At Mount Farm Main Street Westow Malton   

 Proposal: Erection of 1no. 3 bedroom dwelling with attached carport and a terrace of 1no. 
  3 bedroom and 2no. 2 bedroom dwellings with associated parking and amenity  
 areas. 

 15 

 Application No: 14/00896/FUL 

 Application Site: Rainbow Cottage Westgate Lane Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire YO17  
 6SG  

 Proposal: Erection of a steel framed building to incorporate 30no. stables for use in  
 association with The Rainbow Equine Hospital to include demolition of  
 existing former dog kennels and new vehicular access point. 

 16 

 Application No: 14/01077/FUL 

 Application Site: 44 Potter Hill Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AD  

 Proposal: Erection of single storey linking extension, conversion of outbuilding to  
 office/study and change of use and alteration of detached outbuilding to a two  
 bedroom holiday cottage with 2 no. parking spaces (part retrospective  
 application) 

 17 

 Application No: 14/01081/OUT 

 Application Site: Land At Piercy End Kirkbymoorside   

 Proposal: Erection of dwelling with detached garage (site area 0.1ha) 

Page 9



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

Report of the Head of Planning 

 

Non-compliance with both condition 06 of planning approval 00/00400/OUT and condition 6  of 

approval 02/00880/FUL at Steam & Moorland Garden Centre, Malton Road, Pickering North 

Yorkshire 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 

 

To advise Members of  alleged breaches of planning control and recommend an appropriate course 

of action. 

 

 

 

1. SITE LOCATION 

 

1.1 The site lies to the south of Pickering outside the defined development limits for the 

settlement, to the eastern side of the A169 Malton to Pickering road.  It is approximately 

1.3km from Pickering Town Centre.  It currently consists of an established garden 

centre and garden machinery sales and repairs business. There are two main buildings 

on the Steam and Moorland Centre complex which may described as follows : 

 

 1.1.1 the Garden Centre building; and  

 1.1.2 the Machinery Centre building . 

 

2. BREACHES OF CONDITIONS 

 

2.1 The breaches of planning control comprises the breach of conditions restricting the 

range of goods which may be sold from both  the  Garden Centre building and the 

Machinery Centre building on the Steam and Moorland Centre complex. These are 

described below. 

 

 

2.2 Non-compliance with Condition 06 on approval 00/00400/OUT (the Garden Centre 

building) 

 

 Condition No. 06 states:- 

 

 The building(s) hereby approved shall only be used as a garden centre for the display 

and sale of the following categories of goods: 

 

 (i) Pot and bare rooted plants, ornamental fruit bushes and trees, seeds/bulbs, vegetable 

and bedding plants, ornamental and fruit trees, cut flowers; 

 

 (ii) Garden requisites such as composts, fertilisers, weed killers/disinfectants, spray 

equipment, netting, cloches, plant supports; 

 

 (iii) Gardening and greenhouse tools and equipment; 

Agenda Item 6

Page 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

 

 (iv) Gardening protective clothing and footwear; 

 

 (v) Garden pond liners, pumps and equipment, pebbles, aquatic plants, fish and fish 

food; 

 

 (vi) Fencing, path and patio construction materials such as gravel, paving slabs, edging 

materials; 

 

 (vii) Garden furniture and ornaments such as seating, umbrellas, barbecue and barbecue 

fuel, bird tables, feeders and bird feed; 

 

 (viii) Incidentals such as gardening books and videos, cards, artificial flowers, small 

animal feed (e.g. rabbit food); and 

 

 (ix) Natural and artificial Christmas trees, Christmas decorations, table decorations, 

Christmas cards. 

 

 The building(s) and land shall not be used for any other purpose (including any other 

purpose in Use Class A1 of the Schedule of the Town & Country Planning (Use 

Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 

instrument re-voking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification). 

 

 Reason:- The site is in open countryside where current planning policy would not 

normally permit general retail uses. 

 

2.2 Non-compliance with Condition 06 on approval 02/00880/FUL (the Machinery Centre 

building) 

 

 The building hereby approved shall only be for the display, sale and maintenance of the 

following categories of goods 

 

Garden and Agricultural Machinery 

 

The building shall not be used for any other purpose (including any other purposes in 

Use Class A1 of the Schedule of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 

1987, or any provisions equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking or 

re-enacting that Order with or without modification). 

 

Reason:- As the site is located in open countryside where a wider retail use may not be 

appropriate and would be contrary to Policy R4 of the Ryedale Local Plan. 

 

3. WHAT BREACHES HAVE OCCURRED 

 

3.1 The use of the site was investigated by the Council’s Enforcement Officer after 

complaints from operators within Pickering Town Centre regarding the goods for sale at 

the site.  Complaints were received between November 2010 and January 2011. 

 

3.2 When visiting the site, the Enforcement Officer noted numerous items for sale that fell 

outside those listed in Condition 06 of approval 00/00400/OUT.  These included power 

tools and DIY items, pets and pet housing, general clothing, fuel, children’s toys. 

 

Page 11



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

3.3 The appeal statement submitted by the appellant in relation to the appeal against the  

decision of the Local Planning Authority to refuse application ref. 13/01242/CLEUD 

states the following in relation to the Machinery Centre building: 

 

 “The Local Planning Authority was provided with a detailed explanation of the 

circumstances relating to the sale of DIY goods. It is correct that DIY goods have been 

(and still are) sold from the adjoining Machinery Centre, which was opened for trading 

in 2006, but this does not alter the fact that they have also been sold from the 

application premises since 2003.” 

 

4. HISTORY 

 

4.1 Outline planning permission was granted, closely followed by the reserved matters 

submission, for the erection of a garden centre which was approved on 3 October 2000.  

The main building, the subject of a  CLEUD appeal , consists of a floor space of around 

850-900m
2
. This has been described as the Garden Centre building. Building control 

records show that this building was completed on  7 September 2001. 

 

4.2 The second building on the Steam and Moorland complex  has been  described as the 

Machinery Centre. Building control records show that this building was completed on the 

3
rd

 January 2008. 

 

4.3 Planning permission has been granted for a link building between the above two buildings 

comprising   a proposed entrance and first floor café . Planning permission for this was 

approved on 10 August 2010. The planning permission was the subject of a variation 

application which was granted on 9 December 2011. The time condition expires on 8 

December 2014.  A further variation application was received on Friday 20 June 2014. 

This planning permission has not been implemented. The site of the link building is part 

of the CLEUD application site. 

 

4.4 The detailed planning history of the Steam and Moorland complex  is as follows : 

 

14/00692/73A Variation of condition 05 of approval  11/00749/FUL to apply 

condition restricting retail sales to building singular as opposed to 

building(s) plural. 

 Application received on Friday 20 June 2014. 

 This application was approved on 28 August 2014. 

 

13/01242/CLEUD   This application was in respect of the alleged retail sale of goods in 

breach of condition 06 of approval 00/00400/OUT for more than 

10 years.  This application was registered on 30 October 2013.  The 

application was considered by the Planning Committee meeting on 

1 July 2014:  Refused.  

  

 Members of the Planning Committee encouraged the applicant  to 

submit an application for a variation of condition for a limited 

extension of the range of goods that may be sold from the Garden 

Centre for consideration by the Planning Committee .  

 

 

Appeal Lodged. Public Inquiry scheduled for 17 March 2015. 

 

Page 12



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

13/00560/73A Variation of condition 06 of approval 00/00400/OUT dated 

04.08.2000 to allow the sale and display of additional goods as 

listed within the submitted supporting documentation dated 13th 

May 2013 – This planning application was considered by the 

Planning Committee meeting on 29 July 2014. 

At the early part of the agenda relating to declarations of interest 

Councillor Ann Hopkinson declared that she was a director and 

shareholder of the garden centre at Item 14 on the agenda relating 

to the Steam and Moorland Garden Centre Limited. 

When the Planning Committee considered the Steam and Moorland 

planning application Councillor Hopkinson refused to leave the 

Committee meeting despite being requested to do so by Councillor 

Raper the Chairman of the Planning Committee.   

The impasse was dealt with by the Planning Committee resolving 

to defer consideration of the planning application. 

By a letter from Councillor Ann Hopkinson  dated 12 October 

2013, addressed to Councillor Raper as Chairman of the Planning 

Committee and the Members of the Planning Committee, 

Councillor  Hopkinson  apologised for causing disruption and also 

acknowledged that the constitution did require her  to leave  the 

Planning Committee meeting on 29 July 2013 because of her  

interests.  

Councillor Ann Hopkinson  ceased to be a substitute Member of 

the Planning Committee as from 31st October 2013. 

 

The planning application was WITHDRAWN on 6 December 2013 

 

11/00749/73A Variation of condition 16 of approval 10/00114/FUL dated 

10.08.2010 to change reference to approved plans and substitution 

of some plans – APPROVED – 9 December 2011. Time condition 

expires on 8 December 2014.   

 

11/00622/73A Variation of Condition No. 06 of approval 00/00400/OUT dated 

04.08.2000 to allow the display and sale of additional goods as 

listed within the submitted supporting documentation dated 17 June 

2011 – Appeal dismissed by decision letter dated 19 July 2012. 

 

10/00114/FUL Erection of a two-storey, link extension between two existing 

buildings to form covered display and sales area to ground floor 

and cafe, offices, storage and staff room to first floor – 

APPROVED 10/08/2010 

 

 This planning permission includes a condition which deals with the 

issue of the  outdoor sales area and is currently being considered 

through a discharge of condition application pursuant to the 

planning permission granted in respect of planning application 

reference 11/00749/73A.  

 

05/01199/ADV Advertisement Consent granted for the display of 3m by 2m non-

illuminated post mounted V name sign. 

 

Page 13



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

02/00880/FUL Erection of building for use as garden and agricultural machinery 

centre and associated parking – APPROVED 13/09/2004 

 

00/00917/REM Erection of garden centre with associated parking and access – 

APPROVED 03/10/2000 

  

00/00400/OUT Erection of Garden Centre – APPROVED 04/08/2000. 

 

 

5.    PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT  

 

5.1    The relevant planning policy considerations are:  

 

 

  National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

    Paragraph 14   –  Achieving Sustainable Development 

  Section 2  –  Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

     Section 3  –  Supporting a prosperous rural economy 

 

  Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy  

 

    Policy SP7   – Town Centres and Retailing 

    Policy SP19   –  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

    Policy SP20   –  Generic Development Management Issues 

 

6.      APPRAISAL 

 

6.1       The planning permission granted for the garden centre in August 2000 restricted the sale 

of goods from the site to a category largely linked to items found within a garden.  The 

items outside this range were listed as ‘incidentals’ under viii) namely gardening books 

and videos, cards, artificial flowers and small animal feed; and listed Christmas items, 

under ix) natural and artificial trees, cards and decorations.  This granted planning 

permission for a reasonable level of additional products in association with the Garden 

Centre.  This condition was applied to prevent general retailing from this site as it would 

prejudice the vitality and viability of Pickering Town Centre. 

 

6.2 A detailed list of unauthorised items currently for sale at the garden centre include: 

 

• Power tools, nails, screws, paint 

• Pets - fish, budgies, together with cages and animal houses 

• Clothes - outdoor wear, work clothes, overalls, boots, shoes and socks 

• Coal - coal bunkers, logs 

• Children’s toys - go-karts, sledges 

• Books, diaries and address books, clocks, ornaments 

• Jams, toasters, thermos flasks 

 

 This list is not exhaustive and such items as vacuum cleaners and freezers have also 

been sold from the site. 

 

6.3 Following a meeting with the owners of the business in May 2011, a planning 

application was subsequently received on 20 June 2011 to vary Condition 06 on 

Page 14



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

approval 00/00400/OUT.  It listed the following items to be included for sale from the 

garden centre: 

 

• Garden and general toys 

• Garden gates and furniture; handles, bolts, locks, chain 

• Conservatory furniture and decorations 

• Greenhouses and sheds and ancillary goods necessary for the erection and 

maintenance; alarms, ladders, door fittings, hooks, power sockets, wiring flex, 

sealant, paint and watering systems 

• Giftware; candles, pictures, pottery, ceramics and glassware, bath and beauty, soft 

furnishings (cushions etc) and homeware style gifts e.g. trays, coaster, biscuit tins 

• Winter necessities; coal, logs, lighters, grit, de-icer, fuel, fireside accessories 

• Animal feeds 

• Farm shop style produce; jams, biscuits, breads, vegetables, meats 

• Water features, aquatics, spas and pools 

• Country and protective style clothing and footwear 

• Hardware goods ancillary to gardening goods; hand tools, light power tools, 

fixing 

• Solar and electrical lighting and items required for their installation, switches, 

cables, bulbs. 

 

6.4 On the application for the original outline permission in 2000, the applicants at that time 

were advised that the sequential test was needed to be undertaken in accordance with 

PPG6 - ‘Town Centres & Retail Development’ 1996 and Policy R4 - Retail 

development outside the Town Centre Commercial Limits of the Draft Local Plan at the 

time. The applicants made a case that the proposed garden centre was closely aligned 

with Rogers Nurseries which is immediately to the north of the site and shares the same 

access. They also argued that this would allow Rodgers Nurseries to focus on its key 

plant business and less on the retail side. The applicants were asked to submit a list of 

products they would sell from the Garden Centre, which they did.  It is clear from the 

outset that the sequential test was required for general retailing.  The applicants made a 

case, however, that it had specialist links with the adjoining nursery use. The Planning 

Committee accepted this argument but subject to the imposition of Condition 06 

limiting the range of goods that could be sold.  

 

6.5 In 2012 a planning appeal was received against the non-determination of planning 

application 11/00622/73A to vary Condition 06 of planning approval 00/00400/OUT. 

The appeal was dismissed by the Planning Inspector. Members are referred to the 

appendix of this report which includesa copy of the Inspectors decision.   

 

6.6 In 2014 a Certificate of Lawfulness was refused in respect of the retail sales of goods in 

breach of condition 06 of approval 00/00400/OUT. The applicant had not demonstrated 

to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority that a breach of condition 06 had 

occurred for a period of 10 years. The applicant has appealed this decision and  the 

Public Inquiry is scheduled for 17 March 2015. 

 

6.7 The appeal statement in relation to the CLEUD appeal for the Garden Centre referred to 

in paragraph 3.3 above clearly indicates a breach of condition in the Machinery Centre. 

 

6.8 In view of the applicant’s refusal to adhere to National Planning Policy, the nature of the 

complaints received, and the evidence of the clear breaches of planning conditions, it is 

Page 15



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

considered that the Local Planning Authority should take action to remedy these 

breaches of planning control. 

 

7.            WHY IS IT CONSIDERED EXPEDIENT TO SERVE A NOTICE? 

 

7.1  The site is located in open countryside outside the development limits of Pickering and 

well outside of any identified Town Centre Commercial Limits. Without information to 

satisfy the sequential test requirements identified in Section 2 of the NPPF, the general 

retail sales as detailed above from the garden centre are contrary to national planning 

advice contained in the NPPF. This use would adversely impact on the vitality and 

viability of Pickering town centre. The breach of control would also form an 

unsustainable form of development contrary to the requirements of Para. 14 of the NPPF 

and Policy SP19 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. In this instance, with a clear breach 

of a planning condition (imposed for good reason and which is supported by national 

policy), it is considered expedient to take action and issue a Breach of Condition 

Enforcement Notice. 

 

7.2  The expediency reason to serve an enforcement notice is outlined below: 

 

1. The unauthorised breach of condition is contrary to Policy SP7 of the Ryedale 

Local Plan Strategy and Section 2 of the NPPF as it constitutes the unauthorised 

sale of goods from an out of town centre location. Policy SP7 only supports 

proposals which “maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of each town 

centre” and which involve development “redevelopment of land and 

buildings within or on the edge of the Town Centre Commercial Limits”. The 

unauthorised sale of goods in this location does not maintain and enhance the 

vitality and viability of Pickering and does not involve the redevelopment of land 

and buildings within or on the edge of the Town Centre Commercial Limits. 

Therefore, without the submission of a sequential test as required by the NPPF in 

such circumstances, it has not been demonstrated that no harm to Pickering town 

centre has occurred and that the development would be sustainable. The 

development is thereby contrary to Para. 14 and Section 2 of the NPPF, and 

Policy SP7 and SP19 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. 

 

8.     STEPS NECESSARY TO REMEDY THE BREACH 

 

8.1 This report seeks authorisation to serve a formal enforcement notice to ensure 

compliance with Condition 06 on approval 00/00400/OUT and Condition 06 on 

approval 02/00880/FUL to achieve compliance with Condition 06 of both the above 

planning permissions the necessary steps include: 

 

1.  The cessation of the sale of goods   on the site which are not permitted 

under Condition 06 of planning permission  ref. 00/00400/OUT together 

with the removal of those unauthorised goods from the site. 

 

2. The cessation of the sale goods on the site which are not permitted under 

Condition 06 of planning permission  ref. 02/00880/FUL together with 

the removal of those unauthorised goods from the site. 

. 

 

9. SUGGESTED PERIOD FOR COMPLIANCE 

 

Page 16



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

9.1   The suggested period for compliance is one month.   

 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of Planning and Housing 

Services to issue an enforcement notice pursuant to section 172 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended) requiring : 

 

(i) The cessation of the sale  of goods   on the site which are not permitted under 

Condition 06 of planning permission  ref. 00/00400/OUT together with the removal 

of those unauthorised goods from the site; and  

 

 

(ii) The cessation of the sale of goods  on the site which are not permitted under 

Condition 06 of planning permission  ref. 02/00880/FUL together with the removal 

of those unauthorised goods from the site. 

 
 

 

 

Background Papers 

 

Investigation file 08/00145/BC 

Investigation file 10/00156/BC 

 

Application 00/00400/OUT 

Application 10/00114/FUL 

Application 11/00600/73A 
Application    13/01242/ CLEUD 

 

 

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

Report of the Development Manager 

 

Musley Bank Stables, Musley Bank, Malton 

 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 

 

To advise Members of an alleged breach of planning control and recommend an appropriate 

course of action. 

 

 

1.       SITE LOCATION 

 

1.1 The site is located on Musley Bank and within the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty. 

 

2.  ALLEGED BREACH OF PLANNING CONTROL 

 

2.1 The alleged breach of planning control is that the horse walker approved under planning 

application 08/00630/MFUL (as highlighted in the attached plan) has not been 

constructed in accordance with the approved plans.  

 

3.  WHEN ALLEGED BREACH FIRST OCCURRED 

 

3.1 The Local Planning Authority was first made aware of the breach on 24 March 2014.  

 

4.  HISTORY AND EVIDENCE OF BREACH 

 

4.1 The planning consultant acting on behalf of the land owner has not provided any details to 

accurately document the extent of the breach. However, having carried out a site 

inspection, officers consider that the position of the development is similar to that 

approved. The main differences to officers are that the horse walker sits on a raised 

section of land (approximately 2m high), and that the diameter of the horse walker 

measures approximately 16.6m. The approved horse walker measured 14m in diameter.  

 

4.2 Officers consider that the horse walker as constructed is more accurately shown within 

the approved drawings of the later planning permission ref. 14/00574/MFUL. The 

drawings can be seen within the appendix of this report and extracts of both plans are 

appended for Members information.  

 

5.  PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT  

 

5.1  The relevant planning policy considerations are:  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

  Paragraph 14   –  Achieving Sustainable Development 

  Section 11   –  Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy  

 

  Policy SP9   –  The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

  Policy SP13   –  Landscapes 

  Policy SP16   –  Design 

  Policy SP19   –  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

  Policy SP20   –  Generic Development Management Issues 

 

6.       APPRAISAL 

6.1  The main considerations in the assessment of this breach of planning control are: 

 Landscape Impact  

6.2 Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy and the NPPF attach great weight to the 

protection to the landscape of the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  

 

6.3 In this case, the existing horse walker is located within the established complex of 

buildings. The view of officers is that the alteration to the position and scale of this horse 

walker is not one that would be prominent within the landscape or would materially 

impact on the character and appearance of the AONB. The landscape impact of the 

development is considered to be acceptable and in accordance with the requirements of 

Policy SP12 and the NPPF.  

  

 Residential Amenity 

6.4 Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy seeks to protect residential amenity.  

 

6.5 The nearest residential dwellings are situated approximately 65m to the north of the site. 

At these distances, it is the view of officers that the alterations to the horse walker are not 

considered to be such that would materially impact on the amenity of nearby residents. 

Therefore, the development is considered acceptable in terms of residential amenity.  

  

7. RECOMMENDATION 

7.1 The National Planning Practice Guidance provides advice on planning enforcement 

stating: 

“In deciding, in each case, what is the most appropriate way forward, local planning 

authorities should usually avoid taking formal enforcement action where: 

• there is a trivial or technical breach of control which causes no material harm or 

adverse impact on the amenity of the site or the surrounding area; 

• development is acceptable on its planning merits and formal enforcement action 

would solely be to regularise the development; 

• in their assessment, the local planning authority consider that an application is the 

appropriate way forward to regularise the situation, for example, where planning 

conditions may need to be imposed.”  

7.2 The view of officers is that development as built is not significantly different to the 

approved scheme to such an extent that would cause any material harm to residential 

amenity or any additional material impact on the surrounding area. Officers consider that 

the development would be acceptable on its planning merits. Therefore, in this case, it is 

considered that it is not expedient to seek formal enforcement action 

Page 24



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

7.3 In light of the above report, the recommendation to Members is that no formal 

enforcement action is taken.  

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

Report of the Development Manager 

 

Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton 

 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 

 

To advise Members of an alleged breach of planning control and recommend an appropriate 

course of action. 

 

 

1.       INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1     Members will recall that this matter was originally presented on the agenda for the 

Planning Committee meeting dated 23 September 2014. At that time, the item was 

deferred as planning application ref. 14/00949/FUL had been recently validated.  

 

1.2     The public consultation period for the submitted planning application has expired 

therefore the matter is re-presented to Members for consideration. This report should be 

read in conjunction with the Planning Officer report for this planning application. 

Members will note that 88 letters of support and 7 letters of objection have been received 

to the application.  

 

2.  SITE LOCATION 

 

2.1 As identified by the Ryedale Local Plan, the site is located approximately 1km to the 

south of Nawton village within the open countryside and the Edge of the Moors Area of 

High Landscape Value.  

 

2.2 Planning permission was granted for change of use of agricultural land to form a campsite 

providing 'glamping' style accommodation for no. 19 safari type tents in 2011 

(11/00686/MFUL).  The permission also included the formation of a vehicular access, 

provision of a store for the tents and the erection of a toilet, reception block and a 

‘canteen’ marquee.  

 

3.  ALLEGED BREACH OF PLANNING CONTROL 

 

3.1 Change of use of campsite (Sui Generis Use) to a mixed use comprising a campsite (Sui 

Generis Use) and restaurant (A3 Use Class) named ‘Gi Sukawaka Restaurant'. Details of 

the restaurant, including an advertisement in the ‘Yorkshire Advertiser’ and an example 

menu can be found in the Appendix of this report. In addition, Members are directed to 

the website for the campsite (http://canadianfields.co.uk/).  

 

3.2 An additional ‘kitchen unit’ has been located on the site to provide for the restaurant 

which is considered as part of planning application ref. 14/00949/FUL.  

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 29



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

4.  WHEN ALLEGED BREACH FIRST OCCURRED 

 

4.1 The Local Planning Authority was first made aware of the ‘Gi Sukawaka’ Restaurant on 

the 2 June 2014.  

 

5.  HISTORY AND EVIDENCE OF BREACH 

 

5.1 On the 3 June 2014, a letter was sent to the site owner identifying the breach of planning 

control. A response was received on the 11 June 2014, which identified that a Planning 

Consultant had been instructed to submit a retrospective planning application. 

 

5.2 On the 4 July 2014, further correspondence was sent to the property owner as no planning 

application had been submitted. On the 17 July 2014, Planning Application ref. 

14/00777/FUL was validated. The application sought planning permission for: 

 

Change of use from canteen tent ancillary to the campsite for customers staying on the 

campsite to canteen tent not ancillary to the campsite that is open to customers both from 

the campsite and customers not staying on the campsite (retrospective application). 

 

A copy of the public consultation responses received to this application can be found in 

the Appendix of this report.  

  

5.3 On the 19 August 2014, planning application reference 14/00777/FUL was withdrawn. 

The Planning Consultant advised the Council that he had taken legal advice and he 

considered that the development did not require planning permission. A copy of the 

withdrawal letter received from the Planning Consultant can be found in the Appendix of 

this report.  

 

6.   REQUIRES PLANNING PERMISSION? 

  

6.1 The canteen marquee, named the ‘Gi Sukawaka’ Restaurant, currently provides a range of 

different meals, drinks and events to both residents of the campsite and customers located 

from outside of the site. The view of Officers and the Council’s Solicitor is that the 

current operation of the ‘ancillary canteen marquee’ is that of a restaurant use  falling 

within Class A3. 

 

6.2 In considering the need for planning permission, and determining if a material change of 

use has occurred, it is important to refer to planning application reference 

11/00686/MFUL. Planning permission, was granted pursuant to this application for: 

 

“Change of use of agricultural land to allow the siting of 19 no. tents on decking bases, 

erection of toilet and reception block and canteen marquee, change of use of agricultural 

building to winter tent store, formation of vehicular access, gravel site roads and paths, 

car parking and landscaping.” 

 

6.3 Members will note that as part planning application 11/00686/MFUL, a ‘canteen 

marquee’ was granted permission. The use classes order identifies that a canteen which is 

not ancillary to another use, is an A3 Use Class. Therefore, in determining the need for 

planning permission for the restaurant, the question is whether the permitted use of the 

canteen marquee is ancillary to the campsite use.   

 

Page 30



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

6.4 To demonstrate this, reference is made to the application form for planning application 

11/00686/MFUL (see Appendix). Section 18 of the form identifies that the applicant did 

not apply for any distinct or separate A3 use within the site. It is clear, therefore, that 

canteen marquee was intended to be ancillary to the wider campsite use only.  By virtue 

of the provisions of the use classes order, the permitted use of the canteen marquee is 

therefore sui generis, and a material change of use of the campsite (sui generis use) to a 

mixed use comprising a campsite (sui generis use) and a restaurant (use class A3) has 

therefore occurred.  

 

6.5 At this point reference is also made to planning application 14/00949/FUL. As part of the 

public consultation process of the application a significant number of responses have been 

received. In total 88 letters of support have been received, however Members will note 

that only 2 of those letters were from residents who identified they live outside of Ryedale 

or the surrounding area. This is significant as it identifies that the vast majority of people 

who have written in support of the development live in the surrounding area therefore are 

more likely to use be using the facility as a restaurant rather than the permitted campsite 

use. The following examples of the comments received from local residents identify the 

use of the restaurant: 

 

“We have visited the restaurant over 20 times during the summer” 

“Friends and family visit the restaurant on a regular basis” 

“My daughter organised a surprise party for me at Canadian Fields which was 

wonderful and nearly 50 of our friends and family joined us in an amazing three course 

meal” 

“We held my daughters christening here” 

“We visit the restaurant on weekly basis” 

“I booked the whole venue for my retirement party” 

 

6.6 With regards to the events held on the site, such as weddings and race days, Members are 

advised that these do require planning permission as Class B, Part 4 of the GDPO 1995 

does not provide permitted development and temporary uses if the land in question is a 

building, or is within the curtilage of a building.  

 

7.  PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT  

 

7.1  The relevant planning policy considerations are:  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

  Paragraph 14   –  Achieving Sustainable Development 

Section 2  –  Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

  Section 3  –  Supporting a prosperous rural economy 

  Section 11   –  Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy  

 

  Policy SP7   – Town Centres and Retailing 

  Policy SP8   –  Tourism 

  Policy SP13   –  Landscapes 

Page 31



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

  Policy SP16   –  Design 

  Policy SP19   –  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

  Policy SP20   –  Generic Development Management Issues 

 

8.       APPRAISAL 

 

8.1   The issues surrounding the breach of planning control are: 

 

  i) The Principle of the Development 

8.2 As identified in the Ryedale Local Plan, the application site is situated within the open 

countryside and outside any of the Town Centre Commercial Limits of the District. To 

ensure the continued vitality and viability of Ryedale’s Market Towns or Service 

Villages, the introduction of town centre uses outside of town centre locations is 

discouraged in both National and Local Planning Policy. 

 

8.3 In terms of National Planning Policy, Section 2 (Ensuring the vitality of town centres) of 

the NPPF is relevant. Paragraph 24 seeks to protect the viability and vitality of town 

centres through the sequential test process. It states that ‘Local Planning Authorities 

should apply a sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses that are 

not in an existing centre and are not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan. They 

should require applications for main town centre uses to be located in town centres, then 

in edge of centre locations and only if suitable sites are not available should out centre 

sites be considered...’ 

 

8.4 The aims of the NPPF are reflected in the requirements of Policy SP7 of the Ryedale Plan 

- Local Plan Strategy which seeks to ensure that the town centres will be the focus for a 

diverse range of uses in the District. 

 

8.5 In this case, the site owner has not provided a sequential test for the restaurant and as a 

result is has not been demonstrated that the development would not harm the vitality or 

viability of Ryedale’s town or village centres. Paragraph 27 of the NPPF states ‘Where an 

application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is likely to have significant adverse 

impact on one or more of the above factors, it should be refused.’ In light of this, it is 

officers view that the development has failed to meet the requirements of NPPF and 

Policy SP7 the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

8.6  Members will note a letter of objection has been received to planning application 

14/00949/FUL from a local business owner in Nawton. He identifies that since the 

opening of Canadian Fields his level of trade has fallen to such an extent that is 

detrimental to his business. Whilst direct competition is not in itself a material planning 

consideration, the aim of planning policy is to protect businesses which are located within 

more sustainable settlements and locations. 

 

ii) Sustainability 

8.7 A fundamental objective of current planning policy is the issue of sustainability. 

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF and Policy SP19 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy, seek to 

ensure a ‘Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development’. In this case, the 

introduction of an A3 restaurant use which is clearly in the open countryside would 

potentially detract and draw trade from the District’s town / service village centres.  It can 

also only be realistically accessed through private transport and it is considered to 

constitute an unsustainable form of development contrary to the requirements of the 

NPPF and Policy SP19 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

Page 32



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

8.8 Paragraph 28 of the NPPF does provide support for the sustainable growth and expansion 

of all types of business and enterprise in rural areas; and support for sustainable rural 

tourism that benefit businesses in rural areas. In this case, the proposal is not considered 

to be a sustainable form of development and the development is considered to be contrary 

to the provisions of Paragraph 28 of the NPPF. 

 

  iii) Other Concerns  

8.9 Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy seeks to protect Ryedale’s landscapes. In 

considering landscape character Policy SP13 states that ‘Development proposals should 

contribute to the protection and enhancement of distinctive elements of landscape 

character that are the result of historical and cultural influences, natural features and 

aesthetic qualities including the ambience of the area, including nocturnal character, 

level and type activity and tranquillity, sense of enclosure / exposure.’  

 

8.10 With regard to residential amenity Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy is 

relevant. This states ‘New development will not have a material adverse impact on the 

amenity of present or future occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and 

buildings or the wider community by virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to 

neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, 

light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an overbearing presence.’  In this 

case Members will note that this site is located adjacent to ‘Wrens Caravan Park’.  The 

impact of the development on the neighbouring caravan park, its visitors, and the adjacent 

residential property also needs to be considered.   
 

8.11 A key concern relating to both the landscape character and residential amenity is that of 

noise. By virtue of its construction the restaurant / canteen marquee provides little 

protection to the surrounding environment.  When in use, or when events are held, this 

activity results in a level of noise being omitted.  This will have a greater impact on the 

surrounding environment, and nearby residents, compared to a building of more 

permanent construction for example. It is clear from the objections received to planning 

application (14/00949/FUL) that the issue of noise is of great concern to nearby residents 

and visitors to the adjacent caravan park. It is also the view of officers that the levels of 

activity associated with the use, the comings and goings of customers to the restaurant, 

result in harm to the nocturnal character of this quiet country road and the overall 

tranquillity of this part of the Area of High Landscape Value. The development is 

therefore contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan 

Strategy.  

 

8.12 In terms of highway safety, NYCC Highway Authority have verbally raised concerns 

with regards to the restaurant use on the site. In particular concerns are raised to the lack 

of on site parking available to serve the restaurant, and that the public highway would 

require improvements (passing spaces) to accommodate the additional traffic. The written 

comments of the Highway Authority are awaited and will be reported in the Committee 

late pages or at the Planning Committee Meeting.  

 

8.13 Members will note that the Local Planning Authority has also received concerns that a 

Class A5 takeaway use is operating from the site. The full extent of this service has not 

been determined, however the use of the site for these purposes is likely to generate even 

higher and more frequent levels of activity that would impact further on the character of 

the surrounding area and the amenity of nearby residents.  

 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

9.  WHY IS IT CONSIDERED EXPEDIENT TO SERVE A NOTICE? 

 

9.1  The harm created by this development, and the reasons why it is considered expedient to 

serve an enforcement notice are outline below: 

 

1. The principle of siting the restaurant use in an open countryside location is 

unsustainable and therefore contrary to the requirements of the Paragraph 14 and 28 

of the NPPF and Policy SP19 Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

2. The site owner has not provided a sequential test argument or any persuasive 

evidence for the A3 restaurant use to be located on the site outside of a town centre. 

As a result, it has not been demonstrated that the development would not be 

materially harmful to the vitality or viability of Ryedale’s town centres or Service 

Villages, in particular Nawton Beadlem. The development is therefore contrary to the 

requirements of Section 2 of the NPPF and Policy SP7 of the Ryedale Local Plan 

Strategy.  

 

3. The restaurant use and associate events and activities result in harm to the overall 

ambience of the area impacting upon the nocturnal character and tranquillity of the 

open countryside. As a result, the landscape character of the surrounding area, and 

the amenity levels of nearby residential properties are materially harmed. As such, 

this proposal would be contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13 and Policy SP20 

of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

4. As a result of insufficient on-site car parking facilities and the impact on the     

unclassified road known as Gale Lane without necessary highway improvements, the 

restaurant use would result in conditions that are detrimental to highway safety 

contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

10.  STEPS NECESSARY TO REMEDY THE BREACH 

 

10.1 This report seeks authorisation to serve a formal enforcement notice for the cessation of 

the use of the canteen marquee as a restaurant and return it to that of campsite (sui 

generis) use. In order to ensure the use is ceased the following steps shall take place: 

 

1.  Discontinue the use of the land for any purpose related to the A3 and A5 use of the 

canteen marquee including temporary uses, including events such as weddings and 

race days.  

 

2.  Remove any operational development associated to the A3 use, including the kitchen 

unit, from the land.   

 

11.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

11.1 In light of the above report, officers recommend that an enforcement notice is served to 

meet the steps identified in section 10 above 

 

11.2 Members will note that because the restaurant use has been implement without receiving 

planning permission or the submission of a retrospective planning application, the level of 

control the Local Planning Authority can have on the development is limited. An  

enforcement notice should not provide for later approval of details.   

  

Page 34



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 Therefore it is important for Members to note that significant concerns are raised by 

officers that the necessary requirements in terms of highway safety could not be provided 

by virtue of an enforcement notice. 

 

11.3 However, if Members were minded to allow the continued operation of the restaurant use, 

it is recommended that the following restrictions are applied to any enforcement notice 

that is issued: 

 

• The A3 restaurant use / canteen marquee shall not operate for any use outside the 

hours of: 

 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Mondays – Thursdays.  

• 07:00 – 23:00  Fridays - Saturdays 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

• No person who is not a customer of the permitted campsite use (except for 

employees) shall be permitted to be on the premises outside the following times: 

 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Mondays – Thursdays.  

• 07:00 – 23:00  Fridays - Saturdays 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

• No music of any kind  shall be played on the premises outside the following  hours: 

 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Mondays – Thursdays.  

• 07:00 – 23:00  Fridays - Saturdays 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

• No A5 take-away use shall operate from the premises.  

 

12.  SUGGESTED PERIOD FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE NOTICE 

 

12.1  The suggested period for compliance is two months.   

 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of Planning and Housing 

Services to issue an enforcement notice pursuant to section 172 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended) requiring the cessation of the restaurant use (A3 use class) and 

the removal of the pre-fabricated kitchen building from the land.  

 

 

 

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



���������������������������������������������������������������������

�

����������	

������

�

���������������

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 

 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 14/00949/FUL 

Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Miss Jennifer Bulmer 

Proposal: Erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp 

cafe (retrospective application). 

Location: Canadian Fields  Gale Lane Nawton York YO62 7SD 

 

 

Registration Date:        12 September 2014  

8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  7 November 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 October 2014 

Case Officer:  Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Neighbouring Parish Council No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses:       Mr Geoff Thurman, Mr Keith Pickering, Mrs Margaret 

Clancy, Tina Dougherty, Mrs Jacky Pickering, Mrs Marie 

Wilson, Mr Andrew And Mrs Fiona Farnell, Carol Farnell, 

Jacqui Cussins, Mrs Carol Thurman, Sarah Hayman, 

Amancay Argerich, Helen Otterburn, Miss Sarah Morris, Pat 

Spink, Mrs Sarah Kenderdine, Mrs Liz Turnbull, P. 

Thompson, Dianne Archibald, Maureen And Keith Ingleby, 

Mrs L Glover, Mr J Thompson, Mrs Mandy Hudson, Joshua 

Wood, Stephen Dodsworth, Clare Symonds, Robert Toone, 

John Wood, Mr B Hall, Mr Jonathan Pickard, Mr Paul Tate-

Smith, Brenda And Bryan Wilson, Cate Tate-Smith, 

Alexandra Tate-Smith, E A Brown, Christine Pinder, C 

Sleightholme, Mr C J Braithwaite, Hayley Dargan, N L 

Heighton, Mr S E Phillips, Miss Katie Hayman, Mr Dan 

Thurman, Katie Turner, Miss Louise Smith, Mrs Sarah 

Coxon, Mrs Sheila Caine, Mr And Mrs Holmes, Mr Ian 

Oliver, D And J Coney, Mrs Ann Thompson, Mrs Emily 

Slingsby, Mrs Susan Masterman, Mrs Jo Riley, Mrs EEaine 

Bramley, Mr Steven Ruscoe, Mrs Laura Palmer, Mr And Mrs 

Peter And Sarah Stark, Susie Mann, Miss Jo Ward, Pat 

Durrant, Emma Dodsworth, Cara Richardson, Mr James And 

Mrs Louise Gurling, Mr Bruce And Mrs Vanessa Allen, Mr 

Andy Prout, Mrs Angela Blizzard, Mrs Caroline Baum, Mrs 

Agenda Item 9

Page 54



���������������������������������������������������������������������

�

����������	

������

�

���������������

Anita Cooper, Mr mike Smithson, Chris Winsor, Mr Simon 

Baum, Ruth Gordon, Mrs Emma Brackley, Mr David Hunt, 

Mrs Maggie Barraclough, Mr Antony Neal Cooper, Mrs 

Debbie Swift, Mr David Metcalfe, Mr David Taylor, Mrs 

Maria Taylor, Mr And Mrs IE Teasdale, Mr George Innes, 

Mrs Trudi Woodhead,  

 

 

SITE: 
 

As identified by the Ryedale Local Plan, the application site is located approximately 1km south of 

Nawton village within the open countryside and the Edge of the Moors Area of High Landscape 

Value.  

 

The site operates as 'Canadian Fields' after planning permission was granted for change of use of 

agricultural land to a campsite providing 'glamping' style accommodation for no. 19 safari type tents 

in 2011. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

The proposal seeks erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp café 

(retrospective application).  

 

The supporting statement to the application states “The kitchen is essential to the operation of the 

canteen tent or café in order to meet food hygiene regulations. The appearance of the pre-fabricated 

building is in keeping with the adjacent reception and toilet block and is clad in the same western red 

cedar boards.” 

 

Members will also note that there is an enforcement report on the Planning Committee Agenda 

relating to this site. 

 

HISTORY: 

 

11/00686/MFUL  Change of use of agricultural land to allow the siting of 19 no. tents on 

decking bases, erection of toilet and reception block and canteen marquee, 

change of use of agricultural building to winter tent store, formation of 

vehicular access, gravel site roads and paths, car parking and landscaping - 

Planning permission granted 
 

11/01280/73AM  Variation of condition 11 of approval 11/00686/MFUL dated 28.09.2011 to 

state "The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved plans J14 04, J14 06, J14 08 and J14 07A" - J14 07A 

supersedes the originally approved plan J14 07 - Planning permission 

granted 

 
13/01122/73AM Removal of Condition 06 of approval 11/01280/73AM dated 09.03.2012 to 

allow a year round opening season for the holiday occupation of the tents - 

Planning permission granted 
 

14/00777/FUL  Change of use from canteen tent ancillary to the campsite for customers 

staying on the campsite to canteen tent not ancillary to the campsite that is 

open to customers both from the campsite and customers not staying on the 

campsite (retrospective application) - Application withdrawn 

 

 

Page 55



���������������������������������������������������������������������

�

����������	

������

�

���������������

 

 

14/00779/FUL  Change of use of reception, toilet, office and laundry store building to 

reception, toilet, office, laundry store and first floor wardens accommodation 

for use solely in connection with the operation of Canadian Fields campsite 

(retrospective application) - Planning permission granted 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

National Planning Practise Guidance (NPPG) 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 - The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

Background Information 

This proposal is presented to the Planning Committee because of the number of public consultations 

received to the application. In total 88 letters of support and 7 letters of objection have been received. 

A significant number of these letters seek to support or object to the restaurant located on the site. 

However, Members will note that the proposal is not for the retention of the restaurant use.  The 

application seeks planning permission for the erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp 

kitchen to serve the camp café. 

 

The view of officers is that the site accommodates an A3 restaurant use which does not have planning 

permission, and that this proposal is required to support that use. The planning consultant acting on 

behalf of the applicant disputes the A3 use and suggests that any restaurant is operating ancillary to 

the wider campsite use of the site.  

 

At this point, Members are referred to the public consultation responses received to the application. 

Whilst 88 letters of support have been received, only 2 of these are from residents who live outside of 

the district or the surrounding area. This demonstrates that the vast majority of  visitors / customers to 

the site do so mainly for the restaurant facility. Many of these customers visit the site on a regular 

basis, and have held events at the site such as surprise birthday parties and retirement parties. The 

scale and nature of the use of the restaurant could not be considered ancillary to the permitted 

campsite use.  

 

Development Appraisal 

In terms of the principle of this proposal, Policy SP1 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy is relevant. 

This requires development in the open countryside to be restricted to that which is necessary to 

support a vibrant, and healthy rural economy and communities.  

 

Policy SP8 (Tourism) of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy does seek to support tourism in the District. 

In this case however, as the restaurant use is unauthorised, it is the view of officers that the proposed 

building is not necessary for the purposes of the permitted use of the site. The proposal is therefore 

considered to be an unjustified form of development located within the open countryside therefore is 

contrary to the requirements of Policy SP1.  

Page 56



���������������������������������������������������������������������

�

����������	

������

�

���������������

 

As earlier identified within the report, the application site is located within the Edge of the Moors 

Area of High Landscape Value. This is a locally valued landscape for its natural beauty and scenic 

qualities. Further to representing an unjustified intrusion into the open countryside, the proposed 

building is not considered to be of suitable design or construction for this landscape.  In light of this, 

the application is considered contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13, SP16, and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

In terms of highway safety, on the basis that the proposals are considered ancillary to the use of the 

site, no objections have been received from the highway authority. NYCC Highway Authority have 

verbally raised concerns with regards to the restaurant use on the site. In particular concerns are raised 

to the lack of on site parking available to serve the restaurant, and that the public highway would 

require improvements (passing spaces) to accommodate the additional traffic. The written comments 

of the Highway Authority are awaited, however, and will be reported in the Committee late pages or 

during the Planning Committee Meeting.  

 

The application is therefore recommended for refusal.  

 

Members will note that the above recommendation is made on the basis that the restaurant use on the 

site remains unauthorised. This development would be necessary for the continued operation of the 

restaurant. Therefore, if Members consider that it is not expedient to seek enforcement action on the 

restaurant and thereby in affect granting planning permission for the A3 use, the justification for the 

proposal will have been provided.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  
 

1 It has not been demonstrated that the proposal in this open countryside location is necessary 

to support a sustainable, vibrant and healthy rural economy and/or community. The proposal 

is therefore contrary to the requirements of Policy SP1 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

 

2 The proposed building by virtue of its detailed design and method of construction is not 

considered to be appropriate in this open countryside location, and within the surrounding 

area which is designated as an Area of High Landscape Value. In addition, there has been no 

benefits demonstrated that would outweigh this harm. The proposal is therefore contrary to 

the requirements of Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 14/00947/MFUL 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr Paul Sedman 

Proposal: Erection of 36no. one bedroom apartments. 20no. two bedroom 

apartments, 3no. three bedroom dwellings and 2no. four bedroom 

apartments with undercroft parking, private and communal amenity areas, 

landscaping, management office, alteration to existing vehicular access 

and erection of street front commercial unit with one bed studio above. 

Location: ATS Euromaster 25 - 27 Commercial Street Norton Malton North 

Yorkshire YO17 9HX 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  5 December 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 October 2014 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Recommend condition  

Land Use Planning Drainage details not acceptable  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend Conditions  

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend conditions  

Countryside Officer Confirms proposed landscaping acceptable recommend 

condition  

Archaeology Section Desk based assessment is insufficient to assess the 

impact  

Housing Services No views received to date  

Property Management No views received to date  

Building Conservation Officer No views received to date  

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Comments made in respect of designing out 

crime  

Parish Council Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Awaits further plans before making a recommendation  

 

Neighbour responses: Sophie Tasker, Mr Keith Nicholson, Simon Jones, Sarah 

Munro, Sheila And Brian Atkinson, Mr Darron 

Callender, Mr Andrew Douthwaite, Mrs Janet 

Douthwaite, Mrs Jackie McGibbson, Lee Halsteal, J 

Wasley, Z M Rea, Julie Parker, Miss Rosie Wardale, 

Mrs Angela Wardale, Mr Roger Wardale, Mrs Gaynor 

Johnson, Miss P Simpson, Mrs C J Miers, The Occupier, 

Hassan  - Shoraka,  

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION: 
 

Members will be aware that the Council has received a Major application for the above-mentioned 

development. 

 

The application is not presented for any formal decision to be made at the meeting. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 71



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

 

The submitted application has generated significant interest locally.  Negotiations have taken place 

which will result in the submission of an amended scheme for further re-consultation locally with the 

Town Council, interested third parties and statutory consultees.  It is anticipated that the application 

will be presented to a future meeting of the Planning Committee for a final decision to be made. 

 

In advance of that meeting, however, it is considered appropriate to give Members the opportunity to 

carry out a Committee Site Inspection, so that they are more fully able to appreciate the extent of the 

site and the relationship of the development to its surroundings. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

That a Site Inspection be carried out on 2 December 2014. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Site Inspection  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



Page 73



�

����������	

������

���������������

Item Number: 11 

Application No: 14/00132/MFUL 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Kingspan Ltd (Alex Hewitt) 

Proposal: Over cladding of existing insulated roofs with Kingspan insulated roof 

sheet and installation of a 6mw solar PV system onto the new roof 

sheeting (55, 700m² of solar PV panels). 

Location: Kingspan St Hildas Street Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8PQ 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  20 November 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  11 November 2014 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Parish Council No objections or comments to make  

Civil Aviation Authority No views received to date  

Ministry Of Defence No objection  

National Air Traffic Services (NATS) Proposal does not conflict with safeguarding criteria  

Environmental Health Officer No comments received  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Tree & Landscape Officer No objection  

Highways Agency (Leeds) No objection  

 

Neighbour responses: None 

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The application site comprises an existing industrial site, located within the development limits of 

Sherburn. The allocated employment site is located to the eastern side of Sherburn, covering an area 

of approximately 20 hectares. There are several large industrial buildings on site that are generally 

positioned parallel to the A64 that runs along the southern boundary of the application site. These 

buildings mostly have a shallow gable running west-east, with their roof planes facing either north or 

south. The application site sits within the Vale of Pickering landscape, with the Yorkshire Wold’s 

Area of High Landscape Value on the southern side 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the re-cladding of the majority of the roofs and the installation of a 

6MW array of solar panels on the roofs of the existing buildings. The array of solar panels comprises 

approximately 22,700 solar panels and measures an area of approximately 55,700m2. In order for 

some of the existing roof structures to accommodate the solar panels, further roof cladding of 

trapezoidal insulated roof sheeting and specially designed low-pitch roof cladding is proposed, with 

the solar array above. The proposal also includes the addition of rooflights along the northern roof 

slopes.  The area of re-cladding relates to the majority of the building with the exception of the most 

recent extensions to the south east, south west north east and small part on the northern side. 

 

The solar array on the southern elevation of the buildings will be parallel to the existing roof plane. 

Including the re-cladding, the roof height is proposed to increase by no more than 0.18m. 

 

The solar array on the northern elevations will have an east-west gradient of 10 degrees to increase the 

efficiency of the solar array. The proposed installation is proposed to be up to 0.33m higher than the 

existing roof structure which includes re-cladding as appropriate. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 74



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

The proposed electricity generated by the proposed development will be used on site, with any excess 

exported to the National Grid. 

 

HISTORY: 

 
There is a considerable planning history on this site relating to development on this allocated 

employment site, including 63 approvals dating back to 1974, and 1 refusal relating to an office 

extension in 1979. This is, however, the first application for solar panels on the roofs of the existing 

buildings.  

 

POLICY: 

 
National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues  

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• The proposed reduction in CO2 and renewable energy generation; 

• The design of the scheme; 

• The visual impact of the proposed solar array upon the character and appearance of the 

surrounding landscape; 

• Air safety; and 

• Highway safety. 

 

Introduction  

 

The proposed solar array will cover an area measuring approximately 55,700m2. The proposed 

development is classed as a ‘Major’ application and has to be determined by the Planning Committee. 

 

Discussions with the applicant have identified that their current operations at Sherburn are using the 

maximum electricity that they can obtain from the national grid (5.5MW). Therefore, if the company 

wants to expand or requires additional energy it needs to source that from elsewhere. The company, 

Kingspan, employs 550 people in total on its Sherburn site.  The applicant’s have already invested in 

energy saving measures to reduce its electricity usage, including LED lights, insulation and other 

complimentary systems. Those measures along with the proposal solar array will allow the company 

to be largely self-sufficient for its electricity needs, and create further potential for expansion and new 

industrial processes at the site. The applicant therefore considers this proposal as important for their 

future aspirations at the Sherburn site. The applicant has submitted additional information in regard to 

this point, which is appended to this report for Members information.  The proposal is, therefore, 

considered to have clear economic benefits. 

 

The applicant within the supporting information has also stated that the proposal will result in a 

reduction of 52,430te of CO2 emissions over a 25 year period. 

 

Page 75



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

During the consideration of the application, the following matters have been discussed with the 

applicant: 

 

• Whether the solar panels can have a matt/non-reflective coating; 

• Whether the east-west angle on the northern slopes is necessary; 

• Whether the frame surrounding the panel could be in a dark colour and not aluminium; 

• Details of roof inspection measures; and 

• A clearer block plan 

 

A clearer block has been submitted, showing which roofs are proposed to be re-clad, along with the 

proposed roof material, solar array and rooflights. The proposed inspection measures relate to a secure 

wire running along the roof ridge for persons inspecting the array to be secured on to.  This is 

considered to be acceptable and to have no significant impacts in relation to the visual amenity of the 

area. The other three issues are discussed below. 

 

Para. 98 of NPPF states: 

 

‘When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should: 

• not require applicants for energy development to demonstrate the overall need for renewable 

or low carbon energy and also recognise that even small-scale projects provide a valuable 

contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions; and 

• approve the application  if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. 

• once suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy have been identified in plans, local 

planning authorities should also expect subsequent applications for commercial scale 

projects outside these areas to demonstrate that the proposed location meets the criteria used 

in identifying suitable areas.’ 

 

Policy SP18 of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 

‘Developments that generate renewable and/or low carbon sources of energy will be supported 

providing that individually and cumulatively proposals: 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in 

respect of the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering; 

• Would not impact adversely on the local community, economy, or historical interests, unless 

their impact can be acceptably mitigated; 

• Would not have an adverse impact on nature conservation, in particular in relation to any 

sites of international biodiversity importance, unless their impact can be acceptably 

mitigated; 

 

Would not have an adverse impact on air quality, soil and water resources in Policy SP17, unless 

their impact can be acceptably mitigated’ 

 

Members will appreciate from the above policy extracts that there is considerable support for the 

provision of renewable energy provision in principle, and the reduction in CO
2
 emissions is supported. 

 

Design and scale 

 

The re-cladding of the existing roofs in the goose wing grey coloured roof sheeting is considered to be 

acceptable and the limited height increase (0.2m) is considered to be very nominal given the height 

and scale of the existing buildings. There is considered to be no objection to the proposed installation 

of rooflights into the building, these will also allow greater day light to enter the building.  The 

proposed roof material is considered to be acceptable in this location, and if approved, there is 

considered to be no requirement for a materials condition. 

 

Page 76



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

The eaves of the buildings are between 6.9m and 9m in height and the ridge heights are between 7.5m 

and 11.2m. The roof spans are relatively shallow between 6 and 10 degrees. This has the advantage of 

limiting views of the proposed solar panels from positions very near to the buildings and the gables on 

the eastern and western sides.  Thereby only views of the panels are available at some distance from 

the buildings, particularly on the southern and northern sides. These views however, show the 

buildings within the context on this allocated employment site and affixed to these utilitarian 

buildings. 

  

The proposed panels on the northern roof planes will features several peaks to increase the efficiency 

of the solar array.  However, these are positioned approximately 2m back from the ridge line. The 

applicant’s have submitted a photograph of a very similar scheme that has been developed at one of 

their other sites in Selby (photographs attached to this report). This photograph shows the proposed 

west-east arrangement on the northern slopes. Whilst there was some concern initially about the 

appearance of these elevated panels, and that a series of peaks that may be visible. After further 

consideration, and given that the panels are to be set approximately 2m away from the ridge height, 

this proposed arrangement is not considered to be significant or to be unacceptable from a design 

perspective. Furthermore, the extra electricity created is considered to outweigh the any harm.  

 

Officers sought this to minimise the visual impact of the proposal by asking the applicant to consider 

a black or dark frame for the solar panels. The applicant has advised that it is not cost effective for the 

solar panel frames to be clad in a black coating. The cost increase is approximately £900,000. Part of 

the proposal is to re-clad the majority of the roofs in profiled steel sheeting, in a goose wing grey 

colour. This light coloured material will match the majority of the existing roof material. The 

proposed aluminium framed panels will be of a similar light colour when set against the goose wing 

grey roof. Consideration was given to a darker roof material, however the applicants were not 

prepared to consider this for reasons relating to its thermal qualities. In view of the above it is 

considered that aluminium framed solar panels are acceptable on these buildings and in this location. 

 

Regarding glint and glare Officers sought a matt/non-reflective coating to the solar panels. The 

applicant has proposed the ReneSola Jiangsu Ltd which states a reflectivity level of less than 5%. 

 

Officers consider that this is the best outcome that can be negotiated, which should be considered in 

the planning balance. 

 

The applicants have also submitted justification for their proposals in this report, including their 

detailed research.  The level of reflectivity on these panels is generally regarded as low and similar to 

water.  Please see attached information. 

 

Landscape and visual impact 

 

Policy SP13 advises that the Council will carefully consider the impact of development proposals 

upon the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value, and the Vale of Pickering. 

 

The site is located within the open countryside, within the Vale of Pickering. The land to the south 

rises sharply to an escarpment forming part of the northern edge of the Yorkshire Wolds; an area 

designated as High Landscape Value. Both the Yorkshire Wolds and the Vale of Pickering are local 

designations within the adopted LPS. The site is visible from the Yorkshire Wolds, and from the 

Wolds Way (a National Trail). The Wolds Way follows path on a lower level from the western edge 

of Sherburn to Potter Brompton on the eastern side.  There are some views of part of the northern side 

of the site on the Sherburn - Brompton by Sawdon Road.  Furthermore, there will be very glimpsed 

and limited views of the existing building from the south- eastern edge of the North York Moors. 

 

There is substantial planting along the southern boundary of the application site. The views from the 

National Trail that skirts the lower land to the south are very limited due to interspersed groups of 

trees. In any event the solar panels are not considered to be incongruous in view of the existing 

industrial appearance of the buildings.   

Page 77



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Views from higher viewpoints to the south of the site are very limited. As a result the proposal is not 

considered to give rise to a material adverse effect upon the Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape 

Value. 

 

There are public footpaths around the site, on all sides. From the eastern and western side, the gable 

end will not offer any significant views of the proposed panels, and on the southern side the footpath 

will not offer significant views because of its close proximity to the shallow roof pitch.  The views 

from the northern side of Sherburn are also not considered to be significant and generally only part of 

the buildings can be seen. Views will be available from the railway line to the north although these are 

from fast moving trains and there are no concerns in this respect.  The impact upon the Vale of 

Pickering landscape is not considered to be significant because of the shallow roof pitches and the 

interspersed planting that will help to mitigate views of the site. There is considered to be no material 

adverse effect upon the North York Moors National Park by virtue of the separation distances.  

 

Air Safety 

 

National Air Traffic control (NATs) and the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) have been consulted and 

Moor Farm, a local airstrip in the Parish of Helperthorpe.  NATS have confirmed that they have no 

objection. No other comments have been received to date. Members will be advised of any further 

views received. 

 

The applicants have submitted extensive justification regarding potential glint and glare, see 

documents appended to this report as discussed earlier.  The proposed panel (manufactured by 

ReneSola Jiangsu Ltd) incorporates technology that reduces reflectivity to be typically less than 5%.  

It is considered that this is the best achievable solution in the circumstances and should ensure any 

incidents or flint and glare are kept to a minimum. 

 

Highway Safety 

 

In view of the location of the proposed solar array and the shallow roof pitch the proposal is not 

considered to give rise to an unacceptable distraction to motorists using the A64. The Highways 

Agency and the local Highway Authority have no objection to the proposed development.  

 

Conclusion 

 

In view of the above assessment and taking into account to environmental benefits and CO
2
 reduction, 

the planning balance in this case is firmly tipped in favour of a recommendation of approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority the solar array shall 

only include the ReneSola Jiangsu Ltd panels in accordance with the Declaration for Low 

Reflectivity of Module submitted to the Local Planning Authority on 3 November 2014. 

  

 Reason:- In order to protect the character and appearance of the area and to satisfy Policy 

SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  

  

Page 78



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

3 Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority the solar panels 

hereby approved shall be removed from the buildings when one of the following events 

occur: 

  

 (i) when one or more panel(s) are no longer required for their intended purpose; or 

 (ii) when not in use for more than 3 continuous months; or 

 (iii) the expiry of 25 years from the grant of this planning permission. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and to satisfy Policy SP13 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

• Kingspan - Fabrications; Safety and Lighting Solutions pp 5-6; 

• Declaration for Low Reflectivity of Module - ReneSola Jiangsu Ltd - received 3 November 

2014; 

• Trapezoidal Insulated Roof Panel KS100RW Data Product Sheet in a goose wing grey colour; 

• Kingspan Day-Lite - Data Sheet - National Light Poly - carbonate systems pp 7-8; 

• Kingspan Lo-Pitch Insulated Roof Panel - Data Sheet; 

• Site location plan; 

• Drawing No. 1000; 

• Drawing No. 1001; 

• Drawing No. 1002; 

• Drawing No. SITE 002; 

• Drawing No. KES001; 

• Drawing No. KES002; 

• Drawing No. KES003; 

• Drawing No. KES004; 

• Drawing No. KES005; 

• Drawing No. KES006; 

• Drawing No. KES007; 

• Drawing No. KES008; 

• Drawing No. KES009; 

• Drawing No. KES200; 

• Drawing No. KES201; 

• Drawing No. KES204 

• Drawing No. KS01-M-501; 

• Drawing No. KS01-M-502; and 

• Drawing No. KS03-M-505 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



�

����������	

������

���������������

Item Number: 12 

Application No: 14/00950/MFUL 

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr Stuart Wood 

Proposal: Excavation of clay-lined slurry lagoon 

Location: Poplar House Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North Yorkshire 

YO17 9RL 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  1 December 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  19 November 2014 

Case Officer:  Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objection  

Parish Council No objection - recommendations made  

Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr Simon Flounders,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

Poplar House Farm is an existing farmstead located within the village of Leppington. Whilst the 

farmhouse is within the development limits; the associated agricultural buildings are within the open 

countryside, which is an area of high landscape value.  

 

The nearest residential dwellings to the application site are approximately 100 metres to the west and 

to the south. The amenity areas serving these dwellings are located closer to the proposal at 

approximately 80m - 90m. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

The proposal seeks planning permission for the excavation of a clay – lined slurry lagoon to be sited 

to the north west of Popular House Farm.  The lagoon would measure 55.32metres by 40metres and 

have a slurry depth of 4m. The lagoon will be constructed using a ‘cut and fill’ method whereby the 

excavated soil is used to form embankments of 1.52m high above the foundation level. A 0.75 metres 

freeboard will be also be provided as required by The Water Resource (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural 

Fuel Oil) Regulations 2010 (SSAFO).  A perimeter safety fence of 1.30m is proposed around the 

lagoon.  

 

The lagoon would be sufficiently large to accommodate 2,500m3 of slurry including rainfall, and 

approximately 10% additional capacity if future expansion were proposed. The design will provide a 

gross capacity of 2,460m3.  

 

Members will note that the applicant has begun the construction phase of the development.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

 
The application site is not located within a sensitive area. Therefore, the proposed development is 

considered to fall within Section 11(d) of Schedule 2 of the EIA Regulations. The thresholds for this 

type of development is that the area of deposit or storage exceeds 0.5 hectare (or 5000 square metres), 

and / or where the site is intended to hold more than 5000 cubic metres of sewage sludge.   

Agenda Item 12

Page 170



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

The proposed slurry lagoon has an overall dimension of 2,212.8sqmm with the proposed slurry line 

measuring 1,071.6sqm. The nominal liquid capacity of the lagoon is identified as 2,457.08 cubic 

metres. In this case, given the scale of the development in comparison to the identified thresholds, it 

has been determined that the proposal does not form EIA development.  

 

HISTORY: 

 

13/01326/FUL - Erection of replacement agricultural building for the housing of livestock 

(retrospective application). Planning permission granted. 

 

13/01327/FUL - Erection of replacement agricultural building for the housing the livestock 

(retrospective application). Planning permission granted. 

 

14/00458/FUL - Erection of an agricultural livestock building for calf housing. Planning permission 

granted. 

 

14/00459/FUL - Erection of an agricultural lean to livestock building adjoining existing livestock 

building. Planning permission granted. 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

National Planning Practise Guidance (NPPG) 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 - The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

Background Information 

 

The farm is situated in a Nitrate Vulnerable Zone (NVZ). In such areas the EU Nitrates Directive 

recognises that most of the nitrate in fresh water comes from agricultural sources so where there is too 

much nitrate, farmers are required to reduce the risk that nitrates will pollute watercourses. In a NVZ 

there is a mandatory requirement for five months slurry storage. 

 

As illustrated by the planning history of the site, there has been a recent expansion in the scale of the 

applicant’s dairy herd operations which has been facilitated by new cattle accommodation. It is 

evident that the slurry storage currently available upon the unit does not provide sufficient storage for 

the number of cattle kept or for the duration required by the NVZ.  

 

The existing farm currently produces approximately 1,600 cubic metres of slurry during the 

recommended 5 month NVZ storage period. The slurry is currently removed and recycled on a daily 

basis via a tanker to both sites around the farm and land outside of the NVZ. This treatment of slurry 

is currently contrary to the requirements of the NVZ rules hence the submission for this application.  

Page 171



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Access to the lagoon will be via a concrete pad in the southeastern corner of the field. The siting and 

design of the lagoon has been subject to discussions with the Environment Agency and Planning 

Officers. It has been advised that the design and position of the lagoon is to minimise tractor time and 

will allow the manure to be pushed / scraped to the lagoon. This process means that no pumping of 

the slurry is required. 

 

The applicant advises that the lagoon has been designed to meet the requirements of the NVZ 

regulations as the need of an active farm. The lagoon is designed to hold all the manure from housing 

the cattle to turnout at spring, and the cleaning of alley ways as they milk throughout the year. The 

lagoon will therefore be used to a degree all year round.  

 

In terms of the processes of emptying the lagoon, the farm accommodates arable land to the west. It is 

planned to spread the manure within the lagoon via an umbilical pipe over the fields after harvest. 

This will provide the necessary nutrients into the land thereby reducing the need for artificial 

fertilisers. The whole lagoon would be emptied at this time.  Members will note that when stored for 

prolonged periods slurry may separate with liquid on the surface and sludge on the bottom. Before 

emptying, the slurry has to be stirred thoroughly to mix. It is at this stage that the lagoon would be 

likely to omit the most odour. However the applicant has advised that the period for the stirring 

process and spreading of manure will be short, and will be a matter of  a few days.   

 

The applicant advises that as the manure will be stored on the site and moved across the fields rather 

than through the village this will reduce the number of traffic movements associated to the farm, and 

any dropping of manure that may occur as a result. Further, it is advised that cattle in cubicles use 

considerably less straw than those on straw yards. This system will significantly reduce overall 

volume of manure produced by the farm per annum compared to a straw based system.  

 

Development Appraisal 

 

Policy SP9 (The Land-Based and Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy provides the 

principle of this development. The policy states:  

 

‘Ryedale’s land-based economy will be sustained and diversified with support for new 

buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working countryside, 

including farming, forestry and equine purposes.’    

 

The proposal is considered to be in accordance with the requirements of Policy SP9 and is acceptable 

in principle. 

 

Impact on residential amenity  

 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy seeks to ensure that new development will not have a 

material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future occupiers, the users or occupiers of 

neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by virtue of its design, use, location and 

proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, 

light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an overbearing presence.  

 

For this proposal, the primary consideration relates to the impact of the development in terms of odour 

and in relation to flies.  

 

As described earlier within this report, the nearest residential dwellings to the proposed lagoon are 

situated approximately 100 metres to the west and to the south of the site, with the amenity areas 

serving a number of these dwellings located approximately 80m - 90m from the lagoon.  

Page 172



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

A letter of objection has been received from the occupiers of Poplar View, Leppington Lane, 

Leppington (this correspondence can be seen in full in the planning application electronic file). The 

issues raised include concerns relating to odour and flies. The objector also highlights that their 

property would be situated downwind from the proposal.  

 

In considering the concerns of the objector, Members will note that the decomposition of slurry will 

create various emissions and gases that will have an impact on odour. However, these gases are 

heavier than air and therefore do not have a large dispersal rate.  The supporting statement of the 

application confirms that during the NVZ closed period the slurry will form a crust. This crust creates 

a cap at the surface which helps to mitigate odour potential during the storage. Officers have 

discussed the possibility of covering the lagoon, however the applicant advises that this is unsafe due 

to the high levels of methane that are omitted from the slurry.  

 

There have been no objections raised to the development by the Council’s Environmental Health 

Officers. In their consultation response, to ensure that best practice is followed and in order to protect 

the amenity of residents from flies and odour, a condition is recommended that a manure management 

plan for the development is provided. This plan shall be required to be revised and updated, and 

implemented as necessary.  The condition should include the control of the method by which the 

slurry is removed from the lagoon and the method by which it is spread to land. Other recommended 

conditions include preventing the import of other manures to the farm from other sources, and 

conditions relating to the construction phase of the development.  

 

In light of the comments received from Environmental Health Officers, it is considered that the 

proposal will not lead to levels of material harm to nearby residents and the proposal is considered to 

accord with the requirements of SP20.  

 

Landscape Impact 

 

In terms of the visual impact of the development, it is unlikely that the lagoon will be visible from the 

nearby public highway or from any public footpaths or viewpoints. The development will be sited 

within the context of the existing farmstead thereby reducing any impact that may occur. 

Nevertheless, in accordance with the supporting statement, it is recommended that the permission  be 

conditioned to ensure a hedge (Hawthorn/Blackthorn) is planted alongside the perimeter fence.  

 

Environment Agency Comments 

 

As part of the application process the Local Planning Authority has consulted the Environment 

Agency. Their consultation response raised no objections. However, it has been stated that the lagoon 

must be constructed to ensure it complies with the requirements of The Water Resources (Control of 

Pollution) (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil) (England) Regulations 2010. The site area has 

been reviewed by the Environment Agency who have not objected to the siting. The site overlies a 

non sensitive aquifer with generally low permeability. Therefore provided the lagoon is constructed to 

the appropriate standards, the risk to groundwater is considered to be low.  

 

Parish Council Comments 

 

Scrayingham Parish Council have no objections to the application, subject to the following proviso: 

 

1.  As Mr Wood has changed his waste management strategy for a proportion of the herd very 

shortly after he proposed a different regime in his recent application, we would not expect 

any further changes to either stated policy or volumes of waste. 

 

2. The Environment Agency and Ryedale Environmental Health should review the installation 

after an appropriate period of time to ensure that the environment is not being adversely 

affected, and should continue to undertake reviews on a regular basis 

 

Page 173



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

3. If the lagoon is found to affect the village with odour and flies that action is taken quickly on 

Mr Wood’s part to mitigate this problem. 

 

4. The arguments that the Parish Council have accepted are based on the premise that the 

operations on the farm are a) confined to areas at the West side of the farm away from the 

village; and b) that the size of the operation is not significantly increased beyond the figures 

previously provided, given that they are used as an argument to support the current 

application.  

 

Members will note that the relevant material considerations raised by the Parish Council have been 

taken into account and are incorporated into the conditions recommended by Environmental Health 

Officers. A number of the points raised however do not form material considerations that are within 

the control of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Highway related issues 

 

The comments of NYCC Highway Authority are awaited. Members will be updated of these 

comments either in the Committee late pages, or at the Planning Committee Meeting.  

 

Conclusion 

 

To conclude, the proposed slurry lagoon is not considered to give rise to any impacts that would result 

in material harm. The development is necessary for the continued operation of the farm to overcome 

the requirements of the NVZ.  Conditions are however recommended to protect the amenity of nearby 

residential properties. Therefore, the application is recommended for approval subject to outstanding 

NYCC Highway Authority comments.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 The slurry lagoon, the subject of this approval, shall only be used for the storage of slurry 

produced at Poplar Farm, Leppington only.  

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the levels of activity associated with the development are 

compatible with the site and surrounding area in accordance with Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Before the first use of the development hereby permitted, a manure management plan shall 

be submitted for approval in writing to the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the manure 

management plan shall be reviewed and updated as necessary and submitted to the Local 

Planning Authority for approval in writing prior to any major change occurring.  The 

manure management plan shall include the method by which slurry is removed from the 

slurry lagoon and the method by which it is spread to the land.  

  

 Reason:- To prevent a build up of agricultural wastes leading to problems of odour and flies 

to neighbouring residents. To protect residential amenity in accordance with Policy SP20 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 174



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

4 The operation of construction and excavation equipment in relation to the construction of 

the lagoon shall not operate outside of the hours of 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 09:00 

to 13:00 on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.  

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the levels of activity associated with the construction of the 

development do not result in harm to nearby residential dwellings in accordance with Policy 

SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 Before the first use of the development hereby permitted, large scale details of the perimeter 

of the lagoon shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The 

details shall include a perimeter fence and a hedge (Hawthorn/Blackthorn) planted alongside 

the perimeter fence. 

  

 Reason:- In the interest of the visual amenity of the area and safety in accordance with the 

requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 Any Highway related conditions 

 

7 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing No. LDCL_DR_LAG_08_14_001 

 Drawing No. LDCL_DR_LAG_08_14_002 

 Drawing No. LDCL_DR_LAG_08_14_005 

 Drawing No. LDCL_DR_LAG_08_14_006 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

INFORMATIVE: 

 
1 The lagoon must be constructed to ensure it complies with the requirements of The Water 

Resources (Control of Pollution) (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil) (England) 

Regulations 2010. Two weeks before the store is brought into use, the Environment Agency 

should be notified.  

 

The form that can be used for this purpose can be found at the following webpage:  

 

https://www.gov.uk/goverment/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/298100/LIT_72

81_1d0169.pdf 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

Item Number: 13 

Application No: 14/00976/MREM 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Approval of Reserved Matters  Major 

Applicant: Rangeford Pickering Ltd 

Proposal: Erection of a retirement community of 168no.assisted living units 

comprising 50no. two bedroom and 40no. one bedroom care 

suites/apartments and 70no. two bedroom and 8no. one bedroom 

bungalows together with associated community facilities, access, parking 

and landscaping (outline approval 13/00016/MOUT dated 21.01.2014 

refers). 

Location: Land At OS Field 9525 Crossgate Lane Pickering North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  11 December 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 October 2014 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date  

Land Use Planning No comments to make on the layout details  

Tree & Landscape Officer Landscaping scheme acceptable  

Parish Council Request Planning Authority to address issues raised by 

residents as listed  

Highways North Yorkshire Object to elements of landscaping proposals  

Archaeology Section Makes recommendations  

 
Neighbour responses: Mr Peter Lee, P And A Asquith, Mr P And Mrs J 

Hudson, Mr Richard Kimmings, Ms Anne Wright,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site lies to the eastern side of the A169 (Malton Road) approximately 800 metres to 

the south of Pickering Town Centre.  Its western boundary abuts the A169; its northern boundary 

abuts Crossgate Lane and its southern and eastern boundaries are formed by field hedgerows with 

agricultural land beyond. 

 

The site has a total area of approximately 4.4ha which, until recently, was in agricultural use.  The site 

is bisected by four relatively narrow ‘strip’ fields which are marked by hedgerows and hedgerow/trees 

with some gaps in between. 

 

The site is located outside of, but immediately adjacent to the ‘saved’ development limits of the town 

which in this locality, follow the curtilages of residential properties on Malton Road; Crossgate Lane 

and Outgang Road.  

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

This proposal has been submitted for the approval of the outstanding reserved matters following the 

grant of the earlier outline planning permission, reference 13/00016/MOUT which was approved on 

21 January 2014. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 200



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

 

The outline planning permission included approval of access, scale and layout and the application, 

therefore, only seeks approval for the external appearance of the buildings and the landscaping of the 

site.  Members will recall that a significant amount of illustrative material uses also submitted with the 

outline application and the current application is consistent with that approach. 

 

In addition to the reserved matters, applications to discharge numerous detailed conditions on the 

outline permission have been submitted which are being discharged in the normal manner under 

officer delegated powers. 

 

Members will recall that there was much discussion with regard to the principle of the development 

and the scale and position of the buildings proposed with the outline planning permission.  These 

matters are, however, all approved under the earlier permission and cannot be re-visited as part of this 

reserved matters application. 

 

For Members information, the general proportions of the buildings is as follows:- 

 

The application comprises a mixture of different types of accommodation in a range of one and two 

bedrooms, all of which are accessed via a new entrance off Malton Road.  The bungalows are 

arranged around the south, west and part of the northern periphery’s of the site.  Typically, they have 

eaves heights of 2.4m and apex heights varying between 5.3 and 6 metres depending upon the 

particular design of unit. 

 

The care suite/apartments and community facilities buildings is located in the north-western section of 

the site, close to the junction with Crossgates Lane and Malton Road.  This block of buildings is set 

predominantly over two and three stories with the two-storey elements located close to the north and 

western boundaries of the site.  The three-storey element shown on the submitted plans and elevations 

incorporates 12No. of the apartments listed in the description of the development.  This element is 

located towards the centre of the site. 

 

The eaves and apex heights of the two-storey buildings typically range between 5.2 and 6 metres and 

8.5 and 9.6 metres respectively.  The three-storey elements have eaves and apex height of 

approximately 8.2 and 11.5 metres respectively.   

 

HISTORY: 
13/00016/MOUT: The erection of a retirement community of 168no. assisted living units comprising 

90no. care suites/apartments and 78no. bungalows together with associated community facilities, 

access, parking and landscaping (site area 4.37ha) - Approved 21.01.2014 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Planning Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework: 

 

The presumption in favour of sustainable development - Paras 11, 12, 13 and 14 

Core planning principles - Para 17 

Promoting sustainable transport - Para 34 

Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes - Paras 48, 49 and 50 

Promoting healthy communities - Para 69 

Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change - Paras 98 and 103 

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment - Para 109 

Conserving and enhancing the historic environment - Paras 129, 131, 132, 135 and 139 

Determining applications - Paras 196 and 197 

Enforcement - Paras 214, 215 and 216 

Page 201



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

 

Local Planning Policy 

 

Ryedale Local Plan 

 

‘Saved’ development limits 

 

Adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscape 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

As mentioned earlier in this report, the outline planning permission establishes that the principle of 

the development, its layout and scale are already approved.  The outline permission also established 

the matters relating to archaeology and impact on heritage assets were fully considered at the time the 

outline permission was granted. 

 

Design Approach 

 

The outline permission was also accompanied by a Design & Access Statement which set out in 

detail, the approach to the development of the site.  The design approach was considered by Members 

at outline stage and illustrative elevations were produced to show how the scheme could be 

developed.  The precise details of the appearance of the buildings was, however, reserved and is the 

subject of this current application.   

 

The details plans and elevations submitted accord with the illustrative plan and elevations previously 

shown to Members and they are considered to be appropriate to the local vernacular in terms of their 

scale, appearance and palette of materials proposed.  They include the use of natural clay pantiles and 

slate.  These roofing materials are particularly welcome because the site is located on the edge of the 

market town and it is considered that the roofscape will be the most obvious aspect of the scheme 

when viewed from the adjacent public vantage points. 

 

Landscaping 

 

The application has been accompanied by detailed plans and a method statement.  These are 

submitted in order to accompany this reserved matters application and also in order to discharge 

detailed Condition No. 24 of the outline permission (landscape method statement). 

 

The submitted information has been considered by the Council’s Tree & Landscape Officer who 

considers the details to be acceptable. 

 

It is of note, however, that NYCC Highways have currently objected to the detailed siting of some 

tree species adjacent to the main spine road within the site which have the potential to cause root 

damage to soakaways and branches overhanging the highway.  This requires a minor amendment to 

the submitted landscaping plans and Members will be updated at the meeting. 

Page 202



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

 

NYCC Archaeology 

 

Have no objection and note that they have recently approved a Written Scheme of Investigation 

required by Condition No. 21 of the outline permission.  It is not necessary, however, to repeat the 

need for the condition as part of this reserved matters application. 

 

Yorkshire Water 

 

Yorkshire Water’s initial comments relating to the drainage of the site are noted.  Members will note 

that details to discharge the relevant drainage conditions have now been submitted and considered 

acceptable by both Yorkshire Water and the local Internal Drainage Board. 

 

Third Party Comments 

 

Five letters have been received from local residents.  Four objections raising the following points:- 

 

• Loss of Greenfield site; 

• Concern at location of 3-storey elements of the scheme; 

• Concern over construction traffic using Crossgate Lane; 

• Impact on the Doctors surgery; 

• Landscape Management Plan required by outline planning permission; 

• Maintenance of hedge heights; 

• Lighting detail needed; and 

• Concern over pedestrian/access location. 

 

The suggested letter identifies the need for such accommodation in the town which is needed for an 

aging population and will help to free-up family housing. 

 

The Town Council’s comments are appended to this report.  It raises issues relating to hedgerow 

maintenance and enhancement and tree protection.  In addition, the Town Council query the position 

of the pedestrian link on Crossgate Lane and overall parking levels in the scheme.  However, both of 

these latter points were considered at outline stage by NYCC Highways and considered to be 

acceptable in terms of both vehicular and pedestrian safety. 

 

In summary, this reserved matters scheme is considered to accord with the outline planning 

permission and furthermore, that the design and landscape approach is appropriate. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to receipt of amended landscaping plan 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



�

����������	

������

���������������

Item Number: 14 

Application No: 13/00885/FUL 

Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mount Farm Partnership 

Proposal: Erection of 1no. 3 bedroom dwelling with attached carport and a terrace of 

1no. 3 bedroom and 2no. 2 bedroom dwellings with associated parking and 

amenity areas. 

Location: Buildings At Mount Farm Main Street Westow Malton  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  20 September 2013  

Overall Expiry Date:  11 November 2014 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

English Heritage Comments - No objection in principle  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions  

Building Conservation Officer No objection  

Countryside Officer Recommend condition  

Parish Council Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Comments made  

Highways North Yorkshire No objections subject to conditions  

Land Use Planning Requires clarification  

Public Rights Of Way Recommends informative  

Housing Services Support  

 
Neighbour responses: Mrs Elizabeth Anne Caley, Mr And Mrs P And C 

Colbeck, Kathy Charteris, Mr Patrick Colbeck, Mrs 

Angela Fothergill, Mrs Heidi Saxby, , P And J Ormrod, , 

Mr Tim Saxby, Mr Keith Smith, N.H.R Johnson, Mr 

Tony Manging, Miss Jackie Bradshaw,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 
The application site is situated within Westow Conservation Area, and lies within the ‘saved’ 

development limits. It comprises a farm yard with relatively modern farm buildings which are 

constructed from a combination of portal steel frame with infill block work and timber buildings in a 

relatively poor state of repair. These are situated behind traditional houses and a barn on Main Street. 

The site extends in a northerly direction where it reaches open countryside, access is via Chapel Lane 

which runs to the north western corner of the site. The area is predominantly residential, with 

dwellings abutting the southern and western boundaries of the site. A terrace of houses is also located 

at right angles to the main street along the south eastern corner. Gardens to those properties forms the 

eastern boundary. A footpath runs part way down the western boundary. 

 

After the retirement of the previous owner, Mount Farm no longer operates as a working farm.  

 

PROPOSAL:  

 

Permission is sought for the removal of the modern barns on the site, and the erection of 1 single 

storey, 3 bedroom dwelling with an attached carport and a terrace of 2 no. two bedroom dwellings and 

1 no. 3 bedroom dwelling with associated parking. 

 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 216



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

The terraced houses run in a north-south orientation, with parking for the end terraces to either side, 

and two spaces in front of the central terrace. The houses have an eaves height of 4.2m and a ridge 

height of 7.4m. They will be constructed from stone under a clay pantile roof with brick stacks and 

timber windows. 

 

To the north of the terrace, a single storey dwelling will be constructed from coursed rubble stone 

with an attached traditional car port to the side. The western elevation of the dwelling is blank with 

the exception of clay pipe vents which are included to give a more traditional semi-agricultural 

appearance. 

 

It will be constructed from coursed nibble stone under a clay pipe vent. 

 

As a result of the response from the Highways Authority, together with concerns expressed by some 

neighbouring occupiers, a turning head will be provided immediately adjacent to the northern 

boundary of the site. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Primary Legislation 

 

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Area Act ) 1990 

 

National Planning Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework March 2012 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services (relates to Public open space Contributions) 

Policy SP12 - Heritage  

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption id Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Conditions 

 

Neighbour response 

 

The application was submitted in August 2013. Since its submission, 12 letters of objection to the 

development have been received.  However some are as a result of re-consultation.  Revised plans 

have been received and re-consultation has been carried out since many of the comments were 

received. The full comments are available to view on the public website, however the following 

includes many of the main points raised:- 

 

• Westow is a small village, the population increase would blur its rural identity and put 

pressure on resources 

• Rural lanes are unlit and narrow, and  an increase in traffic would be hazardous 

• Light pollution 

• Chapel Lane is at full capacity 

• The turning head is out of keeping and will spoil the character of the area 

 

Page 217



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

• Ecological considerations 

• Development does not preserve or enhance the character of the Conservation Area 

• Overlooking neighbouring dwelling. 

• HGV’s have to reverse down Chapel Lane before they can turn around 

• Impact of additional vehicular movements on the residents of Chapel Lane 

• Small gardens out of keeping with the village 

• Surface water problems 

 

Re-consultation was carried out in relation to the most recent plans submitted on 15 October 2014.  

These plans include the re-location of the parking spaces for two of the dwellings to either side of the 

terrace, to reduce their prominence. Additional landscaping has also been included.  Two letters have 

been received as a result of the re-consultation. The first letter comments that the position of the 

turning head is improved but will still require the removal of part of the hedge. Furthermore surface 

water drainage and water draining from the field onto Chapel Lane has not been addressed. Other 

comments from their previous letters in relation to access, traffic volumes, numbers of houses etc, still 

apply.  

 

A second letter states that the revised plans have not addressed previous concerns in relation to the 

inappropriate design, impact on the character of the Conservation Area, overlooking, turning area will 

block view, and will become an overflow parking area. Furthermore additional traffic is a major 

concern. 

 

Parish Council Response 

 

Prior to the re-consultation on the recent plans, the Parish Council objected to the development. Their 

full comments are appended, however their main points are as follows:- 

 

• The northern property is acceptable 

• The three dwellings will result in increased traffic on roads in the village that were never 

intended to take the volume that they do now 

• Consider the dwellings are too high 

• Parking to the front of the dwellings is not acceptable 

• The orientation of the dwellings could be altered to take their position from the cottages to 

the west 

• If the traditional outbuildings at Mount Farm are ever developed, vehicles may have to park 

on the main street 

• Don’t support use of tarmac 

• The turning head lacks sensitivity, and would be better located directly adjacent to the site. 

 

No further comments have been received from the Parish Council at the time of writing this report in 

relation to the most recent revised plans.  

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main issues in the consideration of the application are: 

 

• Principle of residential development 

• Heritage assessment 

• Design 

• Neighbour impact 

• Access considerations 

• Contributions 

• Ecological considerations 

• Drainage 

 

Page 218



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Principle of Development 

 

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance 

with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy directs most development to the market towns, with Malton 

and Norton supported as Ryedale’s principal town, and Pickering, Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley as 

local service centres. Limited small scale growth will be directed to service villages. Housing in other 

villages is justified only in exceptional circumstances. Westow is not identified as a service village, 

and therefore falls within the category of ‘other villages’. Policy SP2 states that the sources of new 

housing in such areas is restricted to:- 

 

• Infill development (small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage) restricted 

to Local Needs Occupancy 

• Replacement dwellings 

• Sub-division of existing dwellings 

• Conversion and Redevelopment of Previously Developed Land and buildings within 

Development Limits, restricted to Local Needs Occupancy 

• 100% Rural Exception Sites outside and on the edge of Development Limits in line with 

Policy SP3 

• Change of use of tourist accommodation (not including caravans, cabins or chalets) where 

appropriate and restricted to local needs occupancy. 

 

It is noted that this policy restricts development to local needs occupancy. The applicant has stated 

that the application was submitted prior to the adoption of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, 

when no such restriction would be imposed. Whilst officers accept that the application was submitted 

prior to the adoption of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, the decision can only be made on the 

basis of the development plan that is in place at the time the decision on the application is made. 

Accordingly, instead of restricting any dwellings to local needs occupancy, the applicant suggests that 

Plot 3 is provided as an affordable house, together with a financial contribution.  The applicant argues 

that there is an identified need for affordable housing across the district which will not be met in non 

service villages or market towns, unless they are provided as ‘exception’ sites. The Strategic Housing 

Market Assessment demonstrates that the Derwent Ward has a current need of 14 affordable houses 

per year, 64% of which is for two bedroom property.  Officers accept that affordable housing need 

exists across Ryedale (not just the Principal Towns and Local Services Centres) and that addressing 

imbalances in the housing stock and housing market can only be realistically achieved through the 

delivery of new homes.   

 

 In further support for their application, the applicant argues that in the absence of a 5 year housing 

supply, para 49 of the NPPF is engaged: 

 

49  Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-

date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites. 

 

The argument to be made in the light of the above is that because the Local planning Authority does 

not have a 5 year supply of housing (currently calculated at 4.39 years supply), the policies pertaining 

to housing distribution are made silent. 

 

The current lack of a 5 year supply is not disputed by officers, and it is also accepted that whilst 

Westow is not a service village, there is a need for affordable housing which will not be met in such 

rural villages unless provided as an exception site. It is also accepted that when the development 

limits for Westow were drawn up, this site was specifically included unlike similar sites in some other 

villages, and indeed Manor House at the north western end of Westow.   

Page 219



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Taking account of this justification, it is considered on balance that the development of the site for 4 

houses including one  affordable house together with a financial contribution to bring the provision up 

to 35% would not conflict with  the development plan, subject to other material considerations being 

acceptable. 

 

Appropriateness of layout 

 

Policy SP2 includes a requirement for development to be infill only. This criteria was included in the 

plan to maintain the character of settlements, and restrict inappropriate development. If it is accepted 

that Policy SP2 is not applicable at this time (because of the lack of a 5 year housing supply) it is 

arguable that this criteria cannot be applied. Nevertheless, the site lies within Westow Conservation, 

and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Area Act ) 1990 is primary legislation which 

includes the following duty at para 72: 

 

Special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 

appearance of the area: 

 

The site is not a greenfield site, and the majority of the site is covered by relatively modern 

agricultural buildings, which do not contribute to the character of the Conservation Area. They are in 

the main constructed from blockwork and cladding together with a timber building, there are parked 

cars, materials and there are large expanses of access and turning areas. The Council’s Conservation 

Officer has not objected to the development, and in relation to the character of the area, and how the 

development accords with that character, she has advised: 

 

This application site lies within Westow Conservation Area which was designated in 1985. The street 

pattern of Westow is unusual in that it does not follow a typical pattern of toft and croft development 

on both sides of the road with a back lane running behind. Historic development lies predominantly to 

the north and east of Main Street. The development pattern is also unusual in that there are small 

cottages in unusual places, set well back from the road frontage behind other properties, namely the 

row opposite the Old School House ( Park Terrace)  and the row at the south end of Chapel Street, 

Low Beams and Stonecroft) . There is quite an ad-hoc pattern of development in Westow and this has 

happened not only in recent times but historically as demonstrated above.   

 

In my opinion the principle of developing the site is acceptable as it is currently a redundant farm 

yard with redundant agricultural buildings. The redundant buildings are a mixture of traditional and 

modern steel structures and it is proposed to remove the modern steel structures to make way for this 

development. I consider that the steel structures make no contribution to the character of the 

Conservation Area. 

 

It is noted that some of the letters of objection express concern regarding the character of the 

development, and that it will not ‘sit well’ in a rural village. Other concerns relate to the height of the 

dwellings, and the inadequate garden areas. The Parish Council has suggested that the terrace be re-

orientated. A number of letters also express concern regarding the provision of the turning head. 

Additional plans were sought to clarify the scale of the development in relation to neighbouring 

dwellings.  It is considered that these plans demonstrate that the scale of the development is 

appropriate in relation to the character of the surrounding area. The turning head has also been 

positioned directly adjacent to the application site, and the agent is revising the detailing of it to 

include a new hedge of native species to soften its impact. This should soften its impact, and enable it 

to relate better to the character of this rural road.  

 

It is considered that this assessment demonstrates that the location of the development is appropriate, 

and subject to appropriate conditions controlling the materials and detailing, will enhance the 

character of the Conservation Area.  

Page 220



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Design 

 

The duty under the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas)Act 1990 referred to earlier 

in the report is also relevant to the detail of the development.   

 

The importance of good design is also a requirement of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. The 

following paragraphs are particularly relevant to the consideration of this application; 

 

• Development proposals will be expected to create high quality durable places that are 

accessible, well integrated with their surroundings and which: 

� Reinforce local distinctiveness 

� Provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily 

navigated 

� Protect amenity and promote well-being 

 

• The design of new development will also be expected to: 

� Incorporate appropriate hard and soft landscaping features to enhance the setting of the     

development and/or space 

 

As detailed in the section of the report on neighbour consultation, concern has been expressed by 

some residents that the design of the development is not in keeping with the character of the area, and 

the Parish Council raised concern regarding the orientation and height of the terrace. Particular 

concern has also been expressed about the turning area. 

 

The duty under the act relates to the desirability of preserving or enhancing. The Council’s 

Conservation Officer has advised that the existing steel structures make no contribution to the 

character of the Conservation Area. She further states: 

 

In my opinion the combination of agriculturally inspired, and domestic treatment of this site works 

well. The small row of cottages reflects the surprising little rows found elsewhere in the village and 

the scale is appropriate for this location. The agriculturally inspired building creates a neat ‘end 

stop’ to the development and the village at this point, and its scale is befitting to its context. 

 

Notwithstanding the above advice, officers did discuss the concerns expressed by some residents 

regarding the development, with the architect. This resulted in the most recent plans being submitted, 

which showed a relocation of the parking to two of the terrace houses to reduce the impact of the hard 

surfacing, and allow more soft landscaping. A planting buffer has also been provided along the west 

side of the application, with a hedge along the eastern boundary. Officers had sympathy with some of 

the concerns raised regarding the more ‘urban’ character of the turning head. In view of this further 

revisions have been requested to relocate it directly adjacent to the northern boundary of the 

application site, and erect a hedge of native species around it. Additional planting will also be planted 

to the east of the turning head. Officers consider that the surfacing and detailing of this area is crucial. 

The Highways Authority have recommended that the area be kerbed, nevertheless it is considered that 

it be detailed to include a style of kerbing more appropriate to a rural area. 

 

In relation to details, recommended conditions will include a requirement for samples of all materials, 

including both the dwellings, and the ground surfacing. A further condition is also recommended to 

prohibit external lighting unless details have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 

 

Impact of the development on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers 

 

The character of the village has been identified above as one where residential properties do not all 

front the highway. This has resulted in dwellings set to the rear, and cheek- by- jowl with dwellings. 

There are residential dwellings to the south of the site, with a row of cottages to the south east of the 

site, at right angles to the Main Street.  

Page 221



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

The nearest dwelling to the development is Stonecroft which is situated approximately halfway along 

the western boundary of the site and has its gable towards the site. At its closest point the terrace of 

houses lies approximately 14m from the gable with this dwelling. The gable of the dwelling has one 

small window at first floor level. A letter of objection  from the occupier of this dwelling has been 

received. Nevertheless it is considered that the distances between the development and this 

neighbouring property are acceptable and will not have a significant adverse impact on their existing 

amenities. The hedge planting will reduce overlooking of the neighbouring garden by virtue of the 

planting which is proposed on this boundary. In terms of the bulk of the development, it is not 

considered that the development will have a significant overbearing presence. It is noted that the 

existing agricultural buildings are in any event sited in close proximity to the boundary with 

Stonecroft. 

 

A further letter raises concerns that there are windows of properties fronting Chapel Lane that are 1.4 

metres from the lane surface. When a HGV vehicle passes- with the overhang-the distance to the 

vehicle from the window is less than a metre. An increase in the level of vehicle activity on Chapel 

Lane would result in an unsatisfactory standard of residential amenity for the dwellings along this 

lane. 

 

The lane is a public highway where both pedestrians and vehicles are free to pass. This is typical of all 

rural villages. It is not considered that the traffic generated by the erection of four dwellings, over and 

above the activity that could occur if operations on the farm increased, will have a significant adverse 

impact on residential amenity. 

 

Access 

 

Significant concerns have been raised by nearby residents that the access along Chapel Lane is very 

poor. It is a narrow road, with no footpath, and large vehicles often have to reverse down the lane 

before they can turn. Well used public footpaths also exit onto this lane. Letters from concerned 

residents dispute the point made by the applicants that the development will not have a detrimental 

impact on the safety of pedestrians and road users. They state that because Mount Farm has a separate 

access onto Main Street not all vehicles from the farm access Chapel Lane.  It is acknowledged that 

the road is narrow, and will be used by both pedestrians and vehicles. The turning head has been 

provided by the architect to address concerns made by both residents and the Highway Authority. It is 

likely that the erection of four dwellings will result in additional vehicular movements. However the 

size of vehicles will be reduced from large farm vehicles and associated machinery, to mainly 

domestic vehicles. On balance therefore, and in the light of no objection from the Highway Authority, 

it is not considered that a reason for refusal can be sustained on that basis. 

 

Drainage 

 

Concern has been expressed that in times of heavy rain, there is significant surface water running 

from the fields. Furthermore, Yorkshire Water has advised that the combined sewer does not have 

capacity to accept surface water from the development. Members will be updated on this issue at their 

meeting. 

 

Ecology 

 

The application is accompanied by an ecological survey. Small amounts of bat droppings were found 

spread at random on the floor of the Dutch barn building, however no other evidence of habitation by 

bats or birds was found in the modern buildings. It is therefore considered that any approval should be 

conditioned in accordance with the mitigation recommended in the submitted ecological survey. It is 

further recommended that a scheme for enhanced bio diversity be required to include bat and owl 

boxes. 

Page 222



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Contributions 

 

It is stated earlier in the report that any approval on the site would result in the provision of one 

affordable house on site, together with  a financial contribution to equate to 0.4 of a dwelling which 

would result in a 35% affordable housing provision. Policy SP11 also requires that all residential 

developments contribute towards public open space provision. Accordingly if Members are minded to 

approve the development, it should be subject to a Section 106 agreement in respect of both public 

open space and affordable housing. 

 

Conclusion 

 

It is considered that the principle of the proposed development is balanced. The development is 

considered to result in the loss of unattractive, redundant farm buildings and their replacement with a 

well designed scheme that enhances the character of the designated Conservation Area. In this 

instance, given the history of its inclusion within the identified development limit, and the provision 

of one affordable house together with a commuted sum for Affordable Housing and Public Open 

Space, the recommendation is one of approval subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to S106 Agreement  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and notwithstanding 

the submitted plans, a plan at a scale of 1.20 shall be submitted to, and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority to detail the eaves and verge treatment  of the development 

hereby approved.  

  

 Reason: In the interests of enhancing the character of Westow Conservation Area, and to 

satisfy the requirements of Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - -Local Plan Strategy 

 

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

   

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

4 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 

construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre 

square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. 

The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

5 Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise details of all rainwater goods shall be 

submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason : To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

Page 223



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

6 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, all hard surfacing shall 

be permeable, details of which shall first be submitted to, and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of an appropriate external appearance, to achieve the satisfactory 

drainage of surface water, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP12 and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy. 

  

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 

(General Permitted development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 

amending that Order), development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other 

than as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 

application in that respect: 

  

 Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse  

 Class B: Roof alteration to enlarge a dwellinghouse  

 Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse  

 Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch  

 Class E: Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 

swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a 

dwellinghouse or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or 

enclosure. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of ensuring an appropriate external appearance, and to preserve the 

existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 

of the Ryedale Plan- -Local Plan Strategy. 

  

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995, (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or amending that Order), no 

windows, other that those shown on the plans hereby approved, shall be formed in the walls 

or roof of the extension(s) hereby permitted without the prior written consent of the Local 

Planning Authority following a specific application in that respect. 

  

 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenity of adjoining residents, and to satisfy Policy 

SP20 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

 

9 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the chimneys on the dwellings hereby approved shall 

be constructed from brick, details of which shall first be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason : To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

10 Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 

may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and 

design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling 

to which they relate. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

Page 224



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

11 Unless specific details have first been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority, there shall be no external lighting on any part of the development site. 

  

 Reason: To reduce light pollution from the development, and to preserve the character of 

Westow conservation area, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP12, and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan- -Local Plan Strategy, and para 125 of the NPPF 

 

12 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all windows and doors, including 

means of opening, depth of reveal and external finish shall be submitted to, and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason; To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

13 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of 

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs 

and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The 

submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on 

planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. All 

planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the 

first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, to preserve the existing amenities of 

neighbouring occupiers, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP12 and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 

  

14 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted 

report on protected species survey by Julian Hall. Particular attention is drawn to the 

mitigation and recommendation section of the report. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of protecting those species protected under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act and the Habitats Directive. 

  

15 Prior to the commencement of any work of construction on site, details of biodiversity 

enhancement shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

details prior to the occupation of the dwellings. 

  

 Reason: to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP14 of Ryedale Plan-Local Plan Strategy 

 

16 Prior to the commencement of any works on site, precise details of the turning head shall be 

submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority, in co ordination with 

the Highway Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 

  

Page 225



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

17 Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise details of surface water and foul drainage 

shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason; In the interests of the satisfactory drainage of the site, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policies SP17 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan-Local Plan Strategy. 

  

18 Highway Condition 

 

19 Environmental Health condition 

 

20 No construction work shall operate onsite outside the hours 8am until 6pm , Monday to 

Friday, 8am until 1pm on Saturdays and no work on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

  

 Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, and to satisfy the requirements 

of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy. 

  

21 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s):. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

INFORMATIVES: 

 
1 All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ( as 

amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under 

section 41/42 of the Conservation  of Habitats and Species  Regulations 2010. Should any 

bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop 

immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement 

under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ( as Amended) and applied to whoever carried 

out the work. 

Contact details: Natural England, 4th Floor, Foss House, Kings Pool, 1 - 2 Peasholme 

Green, York, YO1 7PX  Tel: 0300 060 1911 

 

2 The applicant is advised that this decision notice should be read in conjunction with the 

Agreement made under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

3 No development shall take place which causes an obstruction or hinders the public right of 

way. 

 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



�

����������	

������

���������������

Item Number: 15 

Application No: 14/00896/FUL 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Rainbow Equine Hospital 

Proposal: Erection of a steel framed building to incorporate 30no. stables for use in 

association with The Rainbow Equine Hospital to include demolition of 

existing former dog kennels and new vehicular access point. 

Location: Rainbow Cottage Westgate Lane Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire 

YO17 6SG 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  5 December 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  28 November 2014 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Environmental Health Officer Verbally advised no objection  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date  

Public Rights Of Way Recommends informative  

 

Neighbour responses: R And A Shipley,  

 

 

 

SITE:   

 

The site comprises a detached house and former kennels, and is located in an area of open countryside 

to the north of Malton. It can be accessed via an unadopted lane from both Rainbow Lane, and 

Westgate in Old Malton. Access from both directions is single width. It is noted however that the 

directions for the existing equine hospital which is situated on the adjacent site are via Westgate in 

Old Malton. 

 

Rainbow Equine Hospital is situated to the west, with the A64 trunk road forming the northern 

boundary. 

 

It is noted that in  August this year, Members resolved to grant planning permission for approximately 

50 dwellings on land to the immediate south west of the existing equine  hospital which will result in 

improvements to the access from Rainbow Lane. The application is subject to a Section 106 

Agreement.  

 

PROPOSAL: 

 
The adjacent equine hospital has recently purchased the site, and permission is sought for the 

demolition of the kennels, and the erection of a steel framed building to accommodate 30 stables for 

use in connection with the equine hospital. The building will be located to the north eastern boundary 

of the site which is screened from the lane by mature planting. The building will have a footprint of 

18m by 39m. The eaves height is 4.4m and the ridge height 6m. It will be constructed from concrete 

panel to a height of 2.4m with cladding above. Permission is also sought for a new access at the south 

eastern corner of the site. 

Agenda Item 15

Page 279



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

HISTORY: 

 
There is no recent planning history for the kennels which were approved in 1979. The following 

history relates to the adjacent equine hospital. 

 

86/00020/OLD - Erection of four loose boxes and conversion of farm building into veterinary store 

and office - Application Permitted 

  

94/00018/OLD - Erection of extension to veterinary practice buildings - Application Permitted 

 

03/01286/FUL - Erection of two bedroom dwelling for use in connection with the equine business 

 

09/00823/FUL - Erection of 1 bedroom annexe 

 

10/01410/FUL - Erection of a steel framed building to provide extra stabling facilities - Application 

Permitted 

 

11/00878/FUL - Permission granted for the erection of 3 stables 

 

POLICY: 

 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (Ryedale Plan) 

 

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distributing of Employment Land and Premises 

Policy SP9 - The Land Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main issues in the consideration of the application are: 

 

• The principle of the business in this location. 

• Appropriateness of design 

• The impact of the development on the character of the open countryside 

• Access considerations 

• Environmental considerations 

• Neighbour impact 

 

Principle of use 

 

The veterinary practice occupied the adjacent site since 1986, and has continued to grow since that 

time. The principle of the use in this location has therefore been accepted. The applicant has advised 

that the business is a tier 3 accredited equine hospital, and one of only 17 RCVS accredited equine 

hospitals in the county. The application site itself has also been occupied by buildings since 1979. It is 

also accepted that because the hospital specialises in large animals, a town centre location would not 

be appropriate. 

 

The business employs 31 members of staff, and as such is of significant benefit to the rural economy. 

It is also considered that whilst situated in the countryside, the site is in walking and cycling distance 

of both Malton and Old Malton, which will enable sustainable access for staff at the practice. 

Accordingly, it is considered that the principle of the business in this location is acceptable. 

Page 280



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Appropriateness of the Design, and impact on character of open countryside 

 

Policy SP16 of the Ryedale Plan states that development proposals will be expected to create high 

quality durable places that are accessible, well integrated with their surroundings and which: 

 

• Reinforce local distinctiveness; 

• Provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily 

navigated; and 

• Protect amenity and promote well being. 

 

The proposed building is of modern construction and proportions, including a shallow pitched roof. 

Nevertheless the site is relatively well screened by existing mature planting, and the ridge height of 

the building is relatively low.  From more distant views it would have the appearance of a farm house 

with associated farm buildings. As such it will not be dissimilar to other small farm steads  in the 

wider area. The applicant has proposed the use of green walls under a mushroom grey roof. It is 

recommended however that the roof colour is changed to dark grey, which would be less obtrusive 

through most of the year.  

 

As stated the site is reasonably well screened from most locations, however it is recommended that 

should permission be granted, it be subject to a condition requiring the planting of further native 

species to re-enforce some areas of the hedge that are less substantial. This includes in particular part 

of the frontage to the site, and the northern boundary where views are glimpsed from the A64 trunk 

road. The proposed access will create an opening on the corner of the site; however this will only give 

glimpsed views into the site. 

 

The development of this site has been established since 1979, and accordingly, the development will 

not have a significant adverse impact on the character of the area. 

 

Access to the site 

 

The site can be accessed via Rainbow Lane, which is a single track unadopted road, or via Westgate in 

Old Malton, and again onto an unadopted road. There is concern that the Rainbow Lane approach is 

regularly used by adults and children walking, and the visibility is very poor. The website for the 

adjacent Equine Hospital, directs customers via Westgate in Old Malton. It is considered that this 

access is preferable. It is noted that a letter of objection has been received from a resident of Westgate 

who considers that there has been a significant increase in horse boxes and associated traffic since the 

Equine Centre’s last expansion. They further state that in the light of the recent planning approval for 

residential development of the former Highways Depot and Coronation Farm site, the residents and 

general public would be in great danger due to the size and number of horse boxes involved.  

 

It is clear that the site has grown significantly in recent years, and the addition of a further 30 stables 

is likely to result in more vehicular traffic. The capacity of the road network is therefore a significant 

material consideration. The previous use of the site as a kennels, however, would also generate 

vehicular movements if it was brought back into full use, and indeed the former highways depot 

would have resulted in additional traffic from larger vehicles. Farm traffic also uses this access to the 

open countryside. It is acknowledged however that the access is through a residential area, and horse 

boxes are significantly larger than most traffic that passes through such areas.   

 

The applicant has also provided additional information regarding the operation of the equine hospital:- 

 

‘The building of further stabling capacity is expressly designed to try and decrease the numbers of 

horses that are having to come back and forth to and from the hospital base for repeat diagnostics and 

treatments as we have no room left for them with our current stabling capacity.  As such, would like 

to clarify that far from increasing traffic; a new stabling facility would help to reduce the volume of 

horse related traffic moving to and from the premises as it would enable horses to remain on site until 

diagnostics and treatments had been completed. 

Page 281



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

The hospital is a fully functional equine hospital unrivalled in the north-east of England.  As such, we 

currently employ 31 members of staff all of whom will drive to work.  This presents a 20% increase 

in staffing numbers in the past 6 years.  This will account for an increase in numbers of vehicles 

passing through Westgate over the past six years. 

 

As a fully equipped referral equine veterinary hospital, we only accept horses that are referred to pre-

arranged appointments between the hours of 8am to 6pm.  We must accommodate for emergency 

treatment of horses 24 hours a day 7 days a week, however, the building of the new barn will not 

increase the numbers of horses arriving for emergency treatment, as it is being used for a different 

purpose.  Our current facilities are used to accommodate the emergency referrals and the proposed 

new barn is not intended to be used for expansion of this service which is sufficiently met with our 

current capacity’. 

 

The Highways Authority has not objected to the proposed development, and advises that the public 

highway element of Westgate Lane is considered acceptable for the proposed use.  The views of the 

Public Rights of Way Officer has also been consulted, but has not objected subject to the inclusion of 

an informative advising that no works be undertaken which create an obstruction to the Public Right 

of Way. 

 

Neighbour Impact  

 

There are no near residential properties to the site itself. It is therefore considered that the neighbour 

amenity impact relates to the access to the site. The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has 

advised that any approval should be conditioned to restrict the burning of stable waste, together with 

details of waste disposal. 

 

Conclusion 

 

It is considered that the principle of the development accords with policy, and the recommendation is 

therefore one of approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the roof of the building hereby approved shall be 

dark grey, details of which shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of visual amenity and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 There shall be no burning of stable waste. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring properties, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and before any part of 

the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of landscaping and 

planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs and show areas to 

be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development.  

 

Page 282



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

 The submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights 

on planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. 

All planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in 

the first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

  

 Reason: To enhance the character of the area, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 

of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, a Transport Plan shall 

be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority which restricts 

vehicular access to the site, to Westgate Lane only. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 The development hereby approved shall be operated in accordance with the Rainbow Equine 

Hospital and shall not be sold or let off separately. 

  

 Reason:- It is considered that the independent use of the site could give rise to greater 

vehicular movements, to the detriment of pedestrians safety and neighbouring amenity, and 

to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

7 Any conditions at the request of the Environment Agency 

 

8 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Revised site plan, scale 1:2500; 

 Drawing No. 14-1043-2 - Layout; 

 Drawing No. 14-1043-2 - Elevations; and 

 Drawing No. 14-1043-3 - Block Plan 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

INFORMATIVE: 

 

1 No works are to be undertaken which will create an obstruction, either permanent or 

temporary, to the Public Right of Way adjacent to the proposed development. 

 

Applicants are advised to contact the County Council's Access and Public Rights of Way 

Manager at County Hall, Northallerton on 0845 8727374 to obtain up-to-date information 

regarding the line of the route of the way.  The applicant should discuss with the Highway 

Authority any proposals for altering the route. 

 

Page 283



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



�

����������	

������

���������������

Item Number: 16 

Application No: 14/01077/FUL 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr Carl And Mrs Elaine Wood 

Proposal: Erection of single storey linking extension, conversion of outbuilding to 

office/study and change of use and alteration of detached outbuilding to a 

two bedroom holiday cottage with 2 no. parking spaces (part retrospective 

application) 

Location: 44 Potter Hill Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AD 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  27 November 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  12 November 2014 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No objection to proposal - concerns regarding increased 

vehicular movement  

Building Conservation Officer No objection  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection - subject to  conditions  

Land Use Planning No comments required from Yorkshire Water  

 

Neighbour responses: Patricia Dring,  

 

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

44 Potter Hill is a grade II listed building situated on the northern side of Potter Hill, which lies within 

Pickering Conservation Area.. There are a number of outbuildings to the rear of the property. There is 

an existing access to the side of the dwelling from Potter Hill, together with an access to the rear from 

Lambs Lane to the north. The area is predominantly residential, with dwellings closely abutting the 

curtilage of the site on the western boundary. It is also noted that the application site ‘wraps around’ 

the small rear yard of the adjacent dwelling at 45 potter Hill 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Permission is sought for; 

 

(i)   The erection of a single storey extension to form a garden room between the existing dwelling 

and the adjacent outbuilding. It will be constructed from stone under a pantiled roof. The 

boundary with the yard of 45 Potter Hill will be formed by extending the height of the existing 

stone wall by approximately 600mm where it abuts the outbuilding and 1.4m adjacent to the 

main house. Timber bi- fold doors will be inserted in the northern elevation. 

(ii) Conversion of existing outbuilding to form an office/store together with the insertion of a roof         

light on the northern and southern roofslopes. 

(iii)  Conversion of outbuilding to form a two bedroom holiday cottage. 

 

 HISTORY: 

 

10/1321/FUL  - July 4
th
 2011 permission granted for the erection of a single storey extension together 

with conversion of outbuildings to office/study, and two bedroom holiday cottage. 

 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 292



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

10/1322/LBC – March 2011. Listed building consent granted for internal and external works to 

dwelling together with conversion of outbuildings as detailed above. 

 

POLICY: 
 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

Development Plan 

 

Policy SP 12 Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 

Policy SP16 Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 

Policy SP14  Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 

Policy SP20 Ryedale Plan -  Local Plan Strategy 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

Members will note from the history section of this report that permission was granted for much of the 

proposed development in 2011. That application has expired, and the application has been re 

submitted to include an amendment to the fenestration on the proposed garden room. The proposed 

plans also include further detail of the proposed southern elevation of the outbuilding that will form 

an office/study. This includes a velux window on the southern elevation which was not included in the 

previously approved application. 

 

It is considered that the principle of the development has been accepted. However the Ryedale Plan – 

Local Plan strategy has been adopted since the previous application was approved. It is therefore 

necessary to consider the application in relation to the current development plan, together with an 

assessment of any amendments  to the application. The application has been brought before members 

because of an objection from a neighbouring owner, and also because of concerns regarding the 

access which have been raised by the Town Council. 

 

The material considerations are therefore: 

 

• Impact of development on the character of the listed building and Pickering conservation 

Area. 

• Is the design of the proposed development acceptable? And does it reflect local 

distinctiveness. 

• Impact of development on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers 

• Ecological considerations 

• Access considerations 

 

Impact of development on character of listed building, and  on Pickering conservation Area  

 

During consideration of the previous applications, the Councils Conservation Officer advised that the 

proposed extension was appropriate in terms of scale, proportion design and location.  

 

It was not considered that the development would result in the loss of significant historic fabric or 

harm the character of the listed building. Accordingly, in view of the broad compliance with policy, 

permission was granted for both planning and listed building consent. In relation to the current 

application, the Conservation officer has advised that in her opinion the amendments to the previously 

approved scheme are minor, and that they preserve the special interest of the listed building. In 

relation to the conservation area, the design of the extension, and alteration of the outbuildings is 

considered to be appropriate, and it will preserve the character of the conservation area. Accordingly 

the development complies with the duty imposed by the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas)Act 1990. 

Page 293



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Appropriateness of design 

 

It is considered that the proposed development has been designed in a manner which respects the 

character of the existing outbuildings. Indeed the repair and re-use of the buildings is welcomed to 

preserve their long term retention. The garden room forms a link between the existing dwelling and 

one of the outbuildings. The proposed bi-fold doors will be constructed from timber, and it is 

considered that their design is in keeping with the character of the principal listed building. The roof 

lights to either side of the roof slope to the proposed office/store are traditional in design and scale 

and will not have a significant  adverse impact on the character of the building.  

 

Impact of development on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers 

 

There are a number of dwellings in very close proximity to the southern and western boundaries of the 

application site. During consideration of the previous application however, it was considered that the 

development was appropriate, and that it would not result in a significant adverse impact on their 

existing amenities. The rear wall to the holiday cottage is blank, and any comings and goings 

associated with it would be away from the boundary with neighbouring occupiers. It was also 

considered that the change of use of the outbuilding to form a domestic office/study together with the 

link extension would not have a significant adverse impact on the existing amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers. A letter has however been received in relation to the current application from the owner of 

45 Potter Hill. Her concerns relate to: 

 

• the inclusion of a rooflight on the roof slope of the outbuilding which forms the northern 

boundary of her property. She expresses concern that if a second floor is inserted in the 

building, it would enable people to overlook her property 

• clarification is requested in relation to materials for the construction of the rear wall of the 

garden room and details of drainage. 

  

In relation to the rooflight, it is noted that this is positioned approximately 2.8m above the internal 

floor level of the building. In view of this it will not be possible to look out of the window onto the 

neighbouring property. The concerns of the neighbouring in relation to the insertion of a floor have 

however been taken into account. Whilst it is unlikely that there is sufficient head height to create a 

second floor, it is considered that any approval should be conditioned to prevent a floor being inserted 

without the submission of a formal application. Given the close relationship between the dwellings in 

this part of Potter Hill, it is not considered that opening the rooflight will give rise to such additional 

noise that would warrant refusing the application. It is also considered that the increase in the height 

of the boundary wall which forms the rear wall of the garden room will reduce some noise transfer 

between the dwellings. 

 

Additional plans have been received to provide clarification in relation to the neighbouring occupiers 

concerns regarding the construction of the boundary wall, and method of surface water drainage. The 

existing stone wall will be increased in height by approximately 1.4m diminishing to 600mm, and will 

be constructed in matching stone. A rainwater gutter will be erected on the rear of the garden room on 

the neighbouring occupiers side of the building, which will run to a box gutter on the applicants own 

land. The applicant has signed certificate A to state that they are the owners of all the land in the 

application site. In relation to the gutter, whilst it overhangs the rear of the garden room, the applicant 

has advised that the existing wall is set slightly off the boundary and therefore the gutter will still be 

within his land ownership. 

 

Accordingly, subject to the implication of the condition referred to above, it is not considered that the 

development will have a significant adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring 

occupiers. 

 

 

 

 

Page 294



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Ecological considerations. 

 

Local Planning authorities have a legal duty under the Habitats Regulations in respect of protected 

species. They must address the following three tests when deciding whether to grant planning 

permission; 

 

• the activity must be for imperative reasons of overriding public interest 

• there must be no satisfactory alternative and; 

• favourable conservation status of the species must be maintained 

 

In this case the buildings are curtilage listed and therefore the repair and re-use of the buildings is in 

the public interest. Given this, there is no satisfactory alternative to the proposed development. 

Furthermore, the change of use to holiday accommodation is beneficial to the local economy. 

 

The previous application included an emergence survey in relation to bats. The survey found no 

evidence of bat habitation at that time. Since then, work commenced on re-roofing the buildings to 

make them watertight. The applicant has verbally confirmed that this was carried out in accordance 

with the recommended mitigation contained within the survey. In view of this, the Council’s 

Countryside officer has advised that no further survey work is required. However it is recommended 

that an informative be applied to any permission advising the applicant of their duties in regard to 

protected species. 

 

Access. 

 

In terms of access, it is noted that the Town Council and two neighbours expressed concern regarding 

the access to the previous application. Nevertheless, it was accepted that there was sufficient room 

within the site to accommodate five vehicles. Furthermore, the Highway Authority did not object to 

the application. The Town Council has not objected to the current application. However they have 

expressed concern that the creation of the holiday cottage would increase vehicular movement 

between the road and the site. This is of concern because the access runs along a narrow diagonal 

slope and across a footpath used by children walking to school. The situation has not changed since 

the previous application was approved. Indeed the Highways Authority has advised that because the 

proposal involves an existing building, and utilises an existing access onto the public highway they 

have no objection to the application subject to a condition which is listed as condition 4 on this report. 

  

Conclusion 

 

It is considered that the principle of the development has already been accepted. The current 

application has been considered in the light of the policies in the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy, 

and the responses to consultation on the application. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 

construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre 

square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. 

The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the development hereby approved does not harm the character of 

the listed building or Conservation Area, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP12 

and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 295



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 (NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached 

proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the 

requirements of the condition discharged) 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the development hereby approved does not harm the character of 

the listed building or Conservation Area, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP12 

and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 No part of the development shall be brought into use until the approved vehicle access, 

parking, manoeuvring and turning areas approved: 

  

 (i) have been constructed in accordance with the submitted drawing (Reference 1:500 block 

plan) 

  

 Once created, these areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their 

intended purpose at all times. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy  and to 

provide for appropriate on-site vehicle facilities in the interests of highway safety and the 

general amenity of the development. 

  

5 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all windows, doors and garage 

doors, including means of opening, depth of reveal and external finish shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure an appropriate appearance, and to comply with the requirements of 

Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 The holiday accommodation hereby approved will be subject to the following conditions:- 

• The accommodation shall be occupied for holiday purposes only; and not as a person’s 

sole, or main place of residence; and  

• It shall be available for commercial holiday lets for at least 40 days a year and no let 

must exceed 31 days; and 

• The owners/operators shall maintain an up-to-date register of lettings/occupation and 

advertising will be maintained at all times and shall be made available for inspection to 

an officer of the Local Planning Authority on request. 

  

 Reason:- It is not considered that the building is suitable for independent residential 

occupancy due to its relationship with 44 Potter Hill and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

7 The holiday cottage hereby approved shall remain in the same ownership as that of 44 Potter 

Hill, and shall not be sold or let off separately. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of neighbouring amenity and highway safety, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

 

Page 296



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995, (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or amending that Order), no 

windows, other than those shown on the plans hereby approved, shall be formed in the walls 

or roof of the dwelling(s) hereby permitted without the prior written consent of the Local 

Planning Authority following a specific application in that respect. 

  

 Reason:- To safeguard the privacy and amenity of neighbouring occupiers, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

9 The office/study shall remain as a single storey building at all times, and no mezzanine or 

additional floor shall be created within it. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of maintaining the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers, and 

to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

10 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Site block plan 1:500 

 Site location plan scale 1:1250 

 Proposed west elevation 1:50 

 Proposed north elevation 1:50 

 Outbuildings-east elevation 1:50 

 Outbuildings-ground floor plan 1:50 

 Outbuildings-first floor plan 1:50 

 Proposed extension conversion  

 And alterations – south elevation 1:50 

 Ground floor plan 1:50 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

INFORMATIVES: 

 
1 The applicant is advised to ensure that all vehicles associated with the property enter and 

leave in a forward gear, and in addition, do not park on the grass verge to the front of the 

site. 

 

2 All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ( as 

amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under 

section 41/42 of the Conservation  of Habitats and Species  Regulations 2010. Should any 

bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop 

immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement 

under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ( as Amended) and applied to whoever carried 

out the work. 

Contact details: Natural England, 4th Floor, Foss House, Kings Pool, 1 - 2 Peasholme 

Green, York, YO1 7PX  Tel: 0300 060 1911 

 

3 You should satisfy yourself, prior to commencement of any work related to this project, that 

no part of the works hereby approved (including foundations and/or guttering) extended 

onto or over adjoining land unless you have first secured the agreement of the appropriate 

landowner(s). 

 

Page 297



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

 

Background Papers: 
 

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



�

����������	

������

���������������

Item Number: 17 

Application No: 14/01081/OUT 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Appn. Type: Outline Application 

Applicant: Mr Paul Strickland 

Proposal: Erection of dwelling with detached garage (site area 0.1ha) 

Location: Land At Piercy End Kirkbymoorside  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  1 December 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  3 December 2014 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date  

Building Conservation Officer No objection  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

 
Neighbour responses: J Cossins,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The site is situated in Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area to the rear of 51-55 Piercy End.  The access 

to the site is situated between the existing dwellings, which also provides access to a block of six 

garages. The Catholic Church and vicarage is situated to the immediate south of the site. The 

applicant has advised that the land is currently used as an allotment and is not a private garden, it is 

approximately 800 square metres and is bounded to the west by the garage block, with hedges around 

the other boundaries. The adjacent dwelling, 53 Piercy End, is a grade II listed building. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Outline planning permission is sought for the erection of a single-storey dwelling and detached 

garage, with all matters reserved. An illustrative plan has been submitted to demonstrate how a 

dwelling and garage could be accommodated on the site. Vehicles and pedestrians would use the 

existing access to the garages. The application is accompanied by detailed information relating to the 

personal needs of the applicant. The applicants have a daughter with a progressive neurological 

disorder who has to use a wheelchair or walking frame.  The family currently live in a two-storey 

house approximately 1 mile from the centre of Kirkbymoorside. The application site is within their 

ownership. Letters in support of the application have been submitted from the following people: 

 

• Consultant Paediatrician 

• Consultant Paediatric Cardiologist 

• Occupational Therapist - York Teaching Hospital 

• Occupational Therapist - NYCC Social Services 

• Head Teacher, Kirkbymoorside Primary School 

• Chief Officer, Ryedale Special Families 

• The applicant’s personal statement 

 

A letter of support has also been received by a Kirkbymoorside Town Councillor.  

Agenda Item 17

Page 323



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

HISTORY: 

 
There is no recent history on the application site itself. The following history is pertinent to the 

adjacent Catholic Church: 

 

00/00553/FUL - Permission granted for the change of use of 1
st
 floor to office together with formation 

of car parking area 

 

08/001037/FUL - Permission granted for extension to church to form toilets 

 

POLICY: 

 

Primary Legislation 

 

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Area Act) 1990 

 

National Planning Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework March 2012 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services (relates to Public open space Contributions) 

Policy SP12 - Heritage  

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption id Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Conditions 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main issues in the consideration of the application are: 

 

• Principle of residential development 

• Heritage assessment 

• Design 

• Neighbour impact 

• Access considerations 

• Contributions 

 

Principle of Development 

 

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance 

with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy directs most development to the market towns, with Malton 

and Norton supported as Ryedale’s principal town and Pickering, Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley as 

local service centres. Limited small-scale growth will be directed to service villages. Housing in other 

villages is justified only in exceptional circumstances. Policy SP2 states that the sources of new 

housing that will contribute to the supply of new homes across the District area as follows: 

Page 324



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

• Housing Land Allocations in and adjacent to the built up area 

• �Conversion and redevelopment of Previously Developed Land and buildings within               

Development Limits 

• Replacement dwellings 

• Sub-division of existing dwellings 

• �Infill development (small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage) 

• �100% Rural Exception Sites outside of and on the edge of Development Limits in line with  

Policy SP3 

• Change of use of tourist accommodation (not including caravans, cabins or chalets) where 

appropriate. 

 

Policy in the development plan therefore supports new development in Kirkbymoorside in principle. 

A key requirement of Policy SP2, however, is that such development is limited to ‘infill only’. The 

proposed site is located in a backland location which is not classed as ‘a small gap site in an otherwise 

built up frontage’. As such, the development would not be supported by Policy SP2. Furthermore the 

site is situated within a sensitive area location. It is within Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area, and 

within the setting of a grade II listed building. Accordingly the acceptability of development in this 

location is inextricably linked to the impact of the development on designated heritage assets. The 

Council’s Conservation Officer has objected to the development for the following reason:- 

 

“This application lies within the Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area and as such, under the Planning    

 (Listed Building and Conservation Areas ) Act 1990, Ryedale District Council has a duty to have  

special regard to the preservation of the character of the area. In addition, a Grade II listed building   

 neighbours the development site to the north and in my view this application would have an impact   

 on the setting of the listed building. Under Section 66 of the above Act, Ryedale District Council also   

 has a duty to pay special regard to the preservation of the special interest of the listed building or it  

 setting.  

 

The character of the conservation area at this point is on the cusp between strong linear burgage plot 

development to the north of the proposed site and more varied development to the south including the 

19
th
 Century Roman Catholic church and vicarage and a mid-late 20

th
 century house set back at a 

canted angle. A block of mid 20
th
 Century garages lies behind the frontage buildings visible through 

and accessed by a vehicular access off Piercy End. 

 

The above outline application proposes a ‘Single Storey Dwelling’. A detached building presumed to 

be a garage is also shown on the block plan however no details of this are provided with the 

application. In my opinion as this application is within the conservation area and affecting the setting 

of a listed building, an outline application is not appropriate and detailed drawings should be 

provided.  

 

The development site uses the existing vehicular access and is positioned behind the existing garage 

block. Views of the dwelling from the road, would be screened by the garage block. The pre-

application proposes a single storey ‘L’ shaped dwelling  to the western boundary.  

 

I consider that the principle of developing this site is unacceptable. In my opinion the character of the 

conservation area which is desirable to preserve is the burgage plot arrangement that consists of 

undeveloped gardens behind frontage buildings. This development does not follow that historic form 

and would position a bungalow style dwelling in a backland location roughly centred within the plot.  

Although I acknowledge that there is a vicarage behind the church at roughly the same location as the 

proposed building, I am of the opinion that this is an anomalous form of development within the 

conservation area and does not reflect the predominant character.    

Page 325



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

I also have concerns regarding the development of this plot and its harmful effect on the setting of the 

neighbouring Grade II listed building sharing a boundary with the plot to the north of the site. At 

present, the setting of the listed building includes undeveloped tranquil back gardens which maintains 

and strengthens the historic burgage plot character. The significance of the listed building in this 

context can be described as a vernacular cottage set within a domestic street setting. The domestic 

curtilage including neighbouring gardens forms the setting to the listed building and these all 

contribute to its significance as they emphasise a historic cottage set within a traditional burgage plot 

arrangement. I am of the opinion that a dwelling on this site would undermine this character and 

cause harm to the setting of the listed building”. 

 

Prior to the submission of this application, the applicant submitted a pre-application request, and was 

advised that on the basis of the fundamental concerns regarding the backland location of the site, and 

the concerns of the Council’s Conservation Officer, an application for the development of the site was 

unlikely to be considered favourably. 

 

The applicant has, nevertheless, resolved to pursue an application for the development of the site, and 

accompanied it with a supporting statement. The full statement is appended, however the agent 

disputes that this site was ever a garden because it was originally located behind a foundry. 

Furthermore he argues that the location is marginal between the burgage plots which are found to the 

north and the developed area of the Catholic Church and Petch Croft to the south. He also refers to 

comments made by the Conservation Officer that the site is “only on the cusp” between these areas. 

 

In relation to the impact of the development on the setting of the listed building he states: 

 

The traditional house on the street frontage is important in its own right and contributes to the 

character and appearance of the conservation area. However behind, apart from the traditional brick 

and stone outbuilding, there are also three further, unsightly, outbuildings of plastic sheeting and 

roofing felt.  

 

The proposed house would be some 40m away from the traditional outbuilding, separated from it by 

the hedge. The unsightly outbuildings define much of the setting of the listed building. 

 

The applicant sums up this section of his statement by the following paragraph; 

 

26. Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan, Heritage, rightly states that designated heritage assets will be 

conserved. It also says that proposals resulting in’ less  than substantial harm’ will only be agreed 

where there is public benefit outweighing any harm. In my judgement there is no harm, but if it is 

considered that there was it would not be substantial and the benefit to the applicants is a compelling 

reason to approve the proposal. 

 

The Conservation Officer has taken account of the applicant’s statement, and acknowledges that the 

site is on the cusp between two zones. Nevertheless she advises that the site falls more within a zone 

where green space to the rear of the plots contributes to the character of the conservation area. 

Historic mapping also shows the site as being largely undeveloped and open. As such, she advises that 

in her opinion, harm would be caused by the development which would not preserve or enhance the 

character of the designated Conservation Area.  

 

Paragraph 134 of the development plan states:- 

 

“Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a 

designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, 

including securing its optimum viable use”. 

Page 326



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

Officers have taken account of the detailed personal statement submitted by the applicant together 

with the submitted letters of support. Officers accept that there is a functional reason why the 

applicants would benefit from living in a market town where there is good access to facilities. It is 

also accepted that there are few single storey properties on the market which are within a short 

distance of the town centre. Nevertheless, personal circumstances are not a public benefit, and carry 

little weight as a material planning consideration. The agent has made reference to para 50 of the 

NPPF which requires Local Planning Authorities to plan for a mix of housing based on the needs of 

different groups in the community, including people with disabilities. It is considered however, that 

this paragraph is intended to be taken into account when forming policies in development plans, and 

by requiring developers of large housing sites to provide a mix of house types.  It is not intended to 

relate to the personal requirements of applicants.  

 

In view of this it is considered that the development fails the duty under the act, and is contrary to the 

requirements of policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan and Section 12 of the NPPF.   

 

Design 

 

The application is in outline with all matters reserved. A plan has been submitted for illustrative 

purposes, but is not binding on the outline application. Nevertheless it is an indication of the proposed 

development and shows an ‘L’ shaped dwelling and double garage. The application form states that 

the dwelling would be brick walling with red clay pantiles to the roof. Officers consider that, 

notwithstanding the officer recommendation, if it is accepted that a single storey dwelling would be 

acceptable in this location, it should better enhance the form of the burgage plots, such as a simple 

linear dwelling. The agent has advised that this would not be possible without increasing the width of 

the dwelling with a corresponding increase in ridge height. Officers accept that circulation space 

would be an essential feature of any dwelling.  Nevertheless, it is still considered that a more 

sympathetic plan form could be achieved. It is also considered that the form and location of the garage 

is inappropriate and diminishes the burgage plots. 

 

Neighbour considerations 

 

The access to the site lies between two existing dwellings. Given that this is already used to serve six 

garages, it is not considered that the use of the access for one further dwelling would result in a 

significant adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers. Nor is it considered 

that the dwelling would result in an adverse impact on their amenities by virtue of overlooking or 

overshadowing. The vicarage to the rear of the Catholic Church is, however, sited in close proximity 

to the southern boundary of the site, with windows overlooking it. In the absence of the submission of 

detailed plans, it is not possible to fully assess the impact of a dwelling on the existing amenities.  

Nevertheless it is considered that it would be possible to mitigate any significant impact on their 

existing amenities by an appropriate design. 

 

Access. 

 

The views of the Highways Authority are awaited.  However, it is accepted that the site is served by 

an existing access which already provides access to six garages. 

 

Conclusion 

 

Officers have taken account of the particular personal circumstances regarding the submission of this 

application, and have sympathy with the applicant’s need to be situated with easy access to facilities, 

together with family and friends. It is also accepted that there are few single storey dwellings 

currently available on the market in close proximity to the centre of the town. Nevertheless, it can not 

be demonstrated that the development preserves or enhances the character of the conservation area.  It 

will result in harm to the setting of the listed building and the character of the conservation area. 

Furthermore the illustrative plan and elevation accompanying the application fails to respect the 

character of the burgage plots. Accordingly, the recommendation is one of refusal. 

Page 327



�

����������	

������

���������������

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  
 

1 The proposed dwelling is in a backland location which does not constitute infill 

development. As such, the development is contrary to the principles of Policy SP2 of the 

Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy. 

 

2 The proposed development fails to preserve or enhance the character of the Conservation 

Area, by virtue of the harm to the burgage plot arrangement that consists of undeveloped 

land behind frontage buildings. As such, it is contrary to the principles of Policy SP12 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. 

 

3 The development would harm the setting of the neighbouring Grade II listed building which 

shares a boundary with the application site. As such, it is contrary to the principles of Policy 

SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the National Planning 

Policy Framework. 

  

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 

  
 

 

1.  

Application No: 14/00756/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scackleton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Nigel Hayes 

Location: Hovingham Lodge (Hayes) Scackleton Lane Scackleton YO62 4NA  

Proposal: Installation of replacement single access door to north-west elevation, replacement 

of single glazed french doors with double glazed doors to north-east elevation and 

replacement of single glazed with double glazed window to south-east elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  

Application No: 14/00908/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Warthill Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Bayne 

Location: Hill Farm House Common Lane Warthill Sand Hutton North Yorkshire YO19 5XW  

Proposal: T1 Beech - Crown reduce by approximately 6 metres and crown clean to remove 

deadwood. T2 Beech - Crown clean to remove deadwood. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3.  

Application No: 14/00902/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Ast Signs Ltd (Miss Shellie Hall) 

Location: Campbells of Malton  Norton Road Norton Malton YO17 9RA 

Proposal: Display of 1 no. internally illuminated fascia sign and 1 no. internally illuminated 

wall mounted sign 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4.  

Application No: 14/00906/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs A Mason 
Location: Gara Farm Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8ER  

Proposal: Erection of replacement 4 bedroom detached dwelling following demolition of 

existing dwelling 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  

Application No: 14/00912/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Harome Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Silk & Pern 

Location: The Pheasant Hotel  Mill Street Harome York YO62 5JG 

Proposal: Erection of detached outbuilding to house 198KW biomass heating system. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6.  

Application No: 14/00916/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Birdsall Parish Council 

Applicant: Birdsall Estates Company Ltd. 

Location: Birdsall House  Birdsall Malton YO17 9NR 

Proposal: Erection of fuel store together with alterations to Brew House and Laundry Buildings 

for installation of biomass boiler system and associated pipework in the service 

wings of the house 

Agenda Item 19

Page 339



_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  

Application No: 14/00917/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Birdsall Parish Council 

Applicant: Birdsall Estates Company Ltd. 

Location: Birdsall House  Birdsall Malton YO17 9NR 

Proposal: Erection of fuel store against rebuilt retaining wall linked by auger system to 

externally and internally altered Brew House and Laundry buildings housing the 

biomass boiler system with associated pipework in the service wings of the house. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  

Application No: 14/00921/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr John Todd 
Location: 4 St Nicholas Street Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9AQ  

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension and 2.4m high timber fence, re-rendering of 

the existing dwelling and widening of existing vehicular access to the rear following 

demolition of existing detached garage. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9.  

Application No: 14/00939/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Appleton-le-Street Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr T Burdekin 

Location: Spring Bank House Easthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6QX  

Proposal: Enclosure of existing covered porch area to form single storey front extension, 

erection of front entrance canopy and erection of first floor rear extension to include 

formation of 2 no. balconies 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.  

Application No: 14/00953/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Nunnington Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Spencer 

Location: Land East Of Rectory Lane Nunnington Helmsley   

Proposal: Erection of block of 2 no. stables with store and tack/feed rooms, for private 

domestic use 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

11.  

Application No: 14/00954/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr N Marwood 

Location: Land South Of Carrick House Sheriff Hutton Malton   

Proposal: Formation of vehicular access. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12.  

Application No: 14/00957/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Henderskelfe Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr Neil Swain 

Location: Castle Howard Estate Castle Howard York North Yorkshire YO60 7BY  

Proposal: Replacement of stainless steel flue with anodized black flue to serve proposed 

biomass heating system within the existing boiler room 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

13.  

Application No: 14/00958/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Henderskelfe Parish Meeting 

Page 340



Applicant: Mr Neil Swain 

Location: Castle Howard Estate Castle Howard York North Yorkshire YO60 7BY  

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include replacement of stainless steel flue with 

anodized black flue, installation of biomass heating system within existing boiler 

room, blocking up of windows internally and fitting of removeable couplings 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14.  

Application No: 14/00959/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Susan Wright 

Location: 53 West End Kirkbymoorside York YO62 6AD 

Proposal: Replacement of 4 no. single glazed timber windows to first and second floor front 

elevation by 4 no. double glazed timber windows and replacement of 1 no. rear 

second floor single glazed timber window by double glazed timber window. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15.  

Application No: 14/00972/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Jonathan Bull - Diamond 

Location: Stone Lea Main Street Welburn Malton YO60 7DZ  

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey rear extension, replacement front porch, 
detached double garage with storage above and detached block of three timber 

stables. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16.  

Application No: 14/00974/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mrs Hazel Wood 

Location: The Cottage (Wood) New Lane Sheriff Hutton YO60 6QT  

Proposal: Replacement of flat roof with pitched roof to the rear and raising of ridge height of 

central section of dwelling. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17.  

Application No: 14/00975/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Wharram Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr William Dewsnap 

Location: Wellmont Cottage Salents Lane Wharram Le Street Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

9TL  

Proposal: Erection of detached single garage. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

18.  

Application No: 14/00978/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Robert Tooke 

Location: 25 East Mount Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7JT 

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to south west elevation, 

following demolition of existing sunroom 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

19.  

Application No: 14/00984/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Burythorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Charles Clarkson 
Location: Argricultural Buildings At Beck House Farm Menethorpe Lane Menethorpe Malton 

North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural grain store to replace existing dryer shed and 5no. silos 

Page 341



_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

20.  

Application No: 14/00985/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Stables 

Location: Prospect House Farm Bean Sheaf Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO17 6UL  

Proposal: Installation of 15KW peak ground mounted solar PV system (60 panels in total) to 

generate electricity for on-farm use 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

21.  

Application No: 14/00986/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Sir William Worsley 

Location: Hovingham Hall Church Street Hovingham YO62 4LX  
Proposal: Blocking up of existing doorway and removal of existing internal wall together with 

formation of new doorway and internal wall, to second floor of east wing to allow 

formation of additional bathroom facilities 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 14/00987/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Lillings Ambo Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Nigel Wilson 

Location: The White House Goose Track Lane West Lilling YO60 6RP  

Proposal: Erection of extension to side and rear to incorporate a single garage/store with first 

floor storage above following demolition of existing detached single garage/store 

(revised details to refusal 14/00058/HOUSE dated 15.04.2014) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

23.  

Application No: 14/00988/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Burythorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Trevor Austin 

Location: Langhill Cottage Burythorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9LB  

Proposal: Change of use from holiday let to a single dwelling house for owner's use 

(retrospective application). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

24.  

Application No: 14/01000/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: JCP Arboriculture Ltd (James Philpott) 

Location: Sutton Farm  Langton Road Norton Malton YO17 9PU 

Proposal: T1 Ash, Fell to ground level due to disease Ash Heart Rot. Re-plant like for like. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.  

Application No: 14/01008/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish:  
Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Keith Davies) 

Location: 43 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AA  

Proposal: Display of 1no. externally illuminated hanging sign adjacent to the arched north 

elevation entrance door (revised details to refusal 14/00675/ADV dated 11.08.2014). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

26.  

Application No: 14/01009/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish:  
Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Keith Davies) 

Page 342



Location: 43 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AA  

Proposal: Display of 1no. externally illuminated hanging sign adjacent to the arched north 

elevation entrance door (revised details to refusal 14/00682/LBC dated 11.08.2014). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

27.  

Application No: 14/01013/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Marton Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mrs Hazel Leonard 

Location: Telephone Box Marton Road Marton Kirkbymoorside   

Proposal: Installation of non-illuminated internally fixed "defibrillator" sign over the existing 

"telephone" signs that relate to the installed defibrillator equipment within the 
telephone box 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

28.  

Application No: 14/01015/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr B Lowe 

Location: 32 Outgang Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7EL  

Proposal: Lime Tree - Crown reduction by a maximum of 2m overall. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

29.  

Application No: 14/01018/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Amotherby Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Suddaby 

Location: East View Main Street Amotherby Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6UN  

Proposal: Erection of part first floor/part single storey extension to side and rear 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

30.  

Application No: 14/01019/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Paul Spencer 

Location: The Croft Main Street Welburn Malton YO60 7EQ  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension and extended bay window 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

31.  

Application No: 14/01078/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Carl And Mrs Elaine Wood 

Location: 44 Potter Hill Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AD  

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include erection of single storey linking 

extension, conversion of outbuildings to office/study and conversion of detached 

outbuilding to a two bedroom holiday cottage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 343



��

�
�����������	�
�����	
�����������	�������
�����

�
�

�

����������	
	���
���������������
�������
���������

��������������������
������������

�����
�����������	�������� �������������!�������!�����""��	�	�
�����#�����������"����

���	
	�������$�%&�'������%()&�

�

���������!$����*+%,-.*�*)&*%%%%,.%�

/��	
�������
�#��0��	1 �������0��	��	�1���0�������0�+'),�2#��

�� ������������������������������
�� ��
!������
�������"
����#�$������	�%����&&��
�	����������!������
�	������������	���������
���

�� ��������������������#�'�����$�������(����	����������������
��
!�)#������*��������"
�������

�� �������������
��)�!�������+��,-(���������,������#�����.�������!������#��
�����������
���/�#�������

�� ��������
�����������!����
���������
�

�

��
�
�

��� %�����������
��!
���
�������������������#�'�����$�������(����	������)#������

*��������"
����������������������
������������0����
!������������������
���

���	
	���

��� �����������������
���������������	���������
��	�������!
����!����
�����������'�����

$�������(��.�1�	��������.�)�����	�
�.�/���
�.�2�� ��(%�������
����������������

������
!��������������
�.�)�!�������+��,-(���������,������#�����.���������

�����������������������������.����0�����
�����!
��
���	��
�����
�3�

�4�5������6��
�����
!����������
!������������
�.�������������	�����������������

�����������
������
�����������	�����
���#�!
������
������������	�������

����������	����������������������������������
!���#�������
��������

�������������������	.���������	���������������7���
!�������.�������#�
�����

�������������	�����
������������
��������!�
�������#��������	������	�������

���������
���
���
�	����������������������	������������������������

��
	������!
��������������
�����

��������������	�������������������������
����������
�����8!.��������������
��


��+�#�����!�
�����������
!��������	.���#������
��������������
��.����

���.�

�����
#���
������.���
�����
!������������������������7����������������������

��������������.�������������
�����������	�����
���#�	�����������������
������

�
���#�������
����

��	���

���

6�� �����������������������!!����
!�����
�������.����������������#���������.�
������

�������������������������
!������������������������������#�
!������#�

�������������5

�������)
����

Agenda Item 20

Page 344



%������*�����
��%$$�2� 69�%�������� 9��

�

�

�����������	�
�����	
�����������	�������
������������

�

���
��
�

��� �������������
������
��
�����������
����
������
�����#�
!����������������!���
�#�


������!���	��
!���������	��������������������������!�
�������	�������
!�

�������	�����5

�������)
����#�������
��������
!�����������	.��
�������	�

��
���#��
����
����������	��
!���#��	���������������������	������#
��	.�������

!�����������
���������
���#��	������#��
��
����������#��������������.����������

�������#�
��������!�
�������	���������������
���
!��������������������	�����

+�� 8�����
���������������������������
��
!���
��������������������������������

���������������	���1
����.���������������	��#�
����������������������������

����������
������������	�����
��6.��
�������������������
�������!�
������	������

����	�
���:!�

������
�����8�������
��������
���;��
!������������	������������

	������.���������:�
�
������������������
���#����	������
���
!���������8��

��������������
�������������������������������
�������������
!�����!
��	�
����

!�
�����������
!��������	���������������������
��
!�������������������	����#
���

��������.������������������	������!����������������

9�� <����������
;����#�
!�����
���������
�	������������������	�.������
�:�
�������

��������������������.��������������
!���#��!!��������������	.����!������
������

����
��
�������������������!
������
��	�������������������=�����#�
!���������

�
�����#��
�����	�����9��
!�����>���
����$������	�$
���#�,�����
�����8���
���

�
�����������	��=�����#�����	��������	

�����������
!�������#�!
�������;�����	�

����!������
���������
!�����������������	�.��
�����#��
�����	������ �
!�����

,�����
�����8����������������.��
������������	����������
!������������	��

�
����.���������������������������������������������
!������������������������

������#�
!��
��������#������������

 �� %���
�	�����������������������������
���������������#.�8��������!������������

�����
!�����!
����������������
�����
�����������������������	������!�������!�
��

�����������	����<����������#���
����������	�
!��
���������	������������#���;��

�
���������.��������������
���#��	�������
!��
�������������������	�����.�8�

����
�����������������������;�����	��������	��������������=������
������������

�;�����	������!�
�������#��������	������������!���
�#�����������

��� %��
�����
���
����������
�����
���=�����!��������������	�����������������
!���#�

�����
���#��	����������������������
��
��������!
��
�������������	���������������

�����
!�������������	�������.������������������!������������	���������.�

�����������#���������������������
����������������
���
�������
����!!������

���������8���������!��������������������!!����������������	��������
����
��
�����

������
������������	�����
����
���
�����	������#����������?�����	��
�����
�����

�����������#��
�����
����������#����������!�
�������#��������	�.����������

�
�����������	�����������
����������������
�������������
�������	.�����������

�
��������
����������������
������������������������������
!���������������
�

���������?�������������#��

&�� $
���#��$�9�
!�����)#������$����@�(
����$����������	#�A($4���=����������
������

�
�����!
�����
�����������������������($�$
���#��$����
���������������������������

�
���;��
!����������������
�����#�����������
�������
����
�����������


�0�������
!��������
������.��������
�����
���
����������
�������������	���������

�;�����	��������8����������!
������
�������
�����
����=�����	�������������	�

��������

Page 345



%������*�����
��%$$�2� 69�%�������� 9��

�

�

�����������	�
�����	
�����������	�������
����������6�

�������������
���������������������
�����������������#������	��
����!��#���7����

�
����
����������������������������0�����
�
�������	������
����������������
��

���������!�
�������������	����������������������
��������
��������
���
!�

��#��	���
�������	���!�
������������	���8����
��
��
���
��������������������
��

�
��������
����#�������������
�����
����
!���#��
����
��������������!�
������


�����
����!�����	�
!�����������

���������������
!�������
�
	�������������.���
����
�������������%�������/
���������

1
�������������
���������������#���������.������
�����	���
���������������

���������������#.�
�����������
����������!�������������
�������	������
����8�

�������������
����
��������
������������.���������	����������
��������������

,�����
�������
���������
�����������	�	�������.�����8�!�����
��������0����!#�

��������������
!�����������������

���������	�

8>�$'"��)�

�

�

�

Page 346



��

�

�
�����������	�
�����	
�����������	�������
�����
�

�

�
�

�

���������	�	�
�
���������������
�������
���������

�������������������
��������������

�
��
������������	
�������� ������������!������!�����""�
	�	����
��#����������
"�
��

�

���	�	�
�����$�%&�'�������%()&�

�
����������	���	�
�	
������	�
�������������!$����*+%,-.*�*)&*%%%%,.%�
/��	������
���#��0��	1 ������0��	��	
1��
0������
0�+'),�2#��

�� �������������
���������������������
������� 
����!�"������	�#����$$�%������
���&�%�

'����������������(%���������)
����*
��������#����$&�%������
���+�,+-��
�� �������������
�����������!�.�����"�������)���/
����/����������
/��
�����	������0!������

1�������� 
��������
�� ���������������������	������������/�����
/��������	���������
��/
����/����
���������

�

���	�	�
�

��� �������������
��/
�����������
/��
���������/������

�����
��

��� "������	�"��������*���������������������
������!������������������������!�

�����������������
����!%����%�����������
�����������
��������������!�

���������
���������!��
�����������������!�
����������2��������������������

��
�������

'�� "���	�������$�,0�/�������31��(4��$4�����'�(-�
/�����	�������������
���

�2�������
/��!����
/������
����������!�	���������
��������������������
/�

�
�����	���������
�����������	�����
���!%�����
�	�������2�������������������
��

�2���������������2�����������������������	�
������!��	�����
������������

��
����������!�������������%�����	���	�����
��������
����������������

����
����������%�����
�����
���!�������!�
���������������
���������
���,�������

�
�����-��

��� ������������������������������������������
�����
�������������������!%���������

���������
���
����� 
������������/���������
�����
�������������������	�
�����


���������
�����������������
��/
����/�����������������������		��������������

 
������	����	��%�	�����������
��������������������
�����
���������%�

������
������!���!�
�5����������!���%��
�����!��
���������
����'�
/�����	�����

��$�
/�����	��������������������������!������������
�����������������/�
������

������
/�������
//����������
�������
������������
����������/
���
��	��
����

+�� 6
����%���������
��/
����/����������
��������
�������7��5��	��������
�������

�������
/����������
�����	��
����	���
��������
�����
����
/����������	%�����	��

�����
����
������������
���������2������%������������/�!%�������� 
�����7���������

�������������

Page 347



 
����1�����
��#""�8�&'(�#��������&(��

�

�

�

��

(�� #���
�	���������������
���
����������������!���5�������
������
�����!������

�����!��������	�%�3�/
�������������������
/����������	�����������	�����
�������

��������������������������!�������������������������������	��!�
�����������

���������������������������
������������	%��
�������������������������
�������

/�
������	����������	�
���4/�

������
�����

&�� *����������!���
����������	�
/��
���������	������������!���2���
���������%�

�������������
���!��	�������
/��
�������������������	������������������
/��!�

���������%�3��
�����
�����������������������2�����	��������	���������������9�����

�
�������������2�����	������/�
�������!��������	������������/���
�!����������3�

���
�/
������������������
/�����/
����������������
�����
�����������������������	��

����/�������/�
�������������	���

��� 3���������/
��������/��������������
���������2������������
������5��	������

��
�����������
��������#���
�	��3�������
�����//�������
������
��/�
������

 
�����%�����	��
�����������������
�����
���
����������
����������
����

�������������������
/�����������	�������������	%�3��
��
��/�������� 
�����7��

������
���
����������
�������

$�� ������
�
��������
��������
�����
������������!��������������������	�

��	�����
��������
��������������������
����������%�����
�����
���!�����
�����

����������
���������
�����3������/
����
��
��/�����������������
����������	�
�����

/
������������
/��
�����

����
��
������%���������������//�������	�
������
����
�������������������������
����

����������
�������3������/
���/���������������
�����������
�����������	����

����������!�
����������2�����%�����������������"������	�"��������*�������%�

�����
����������
����������

���������	�

3:�". ��0�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 348


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 21 October 2014
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 Enforcement Report - 10/00156/BC - Steam And Moorland Garden Centre, Malton Road, Pickering
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 appeal decision

	7 Enforcement Report - 14/00015/CU - Musley Bank Stables, Musley Bank, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plan
	4 Proposed Plans (08-630-MFUL)

	8 Enforcement Report - 14/00007/UD - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 appendicies

	9 14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Plans
	4 Supporting Document

	10 14/00947/MFUL - ATS Euromaster, 25-27 Commercial Street, Norton
	2 Site Location Plan

	11 14/00132/MFUL - Kingspan, St Hildas Street, Sherburn, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Existing plans
	5 Proposed Plans
	6 Plans
	7 Plan Additional
	8 Plan Revised
	9 Supporting Doc
	10 Additional Information 1
	11 Additional Information 2
	12 Additional Information 3
	13 Additional Information 4
	14 Incoming Photo 1
	15 Incoming Photo 2

	12 14/00950/MFUL - Poplar House Farm, Leppington Lane, Leppington, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plan
	4 Plans
	5 Supporting Document
	6 Parish

	13 14/00976/MREM - Land At OS Field 9525, Crossgate Lane, Pickering
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Revised Site Layout
	5 Revised Floor Plan
	6 Revised Elevations
	7 Plan Landscaping
	8 Parish

	14 13/00885/FUL - Buildings At Mount Farm, Main Street, Westow
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout
	4 Revised Site Layout Plan
	5 Existing Floor Plan
	6 Existing Elevations
	7 Proposed Plans
	8 Plan Additional
	9 Revised Design & Access Statement
	10 Additional Information 1
	11 Additional Information 2
	12 Parish 1
	13 Parish 2

	15 14/00896/FUL - Rainbow Cottage, Westgate Lane, Old Malton
	2 Revised Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Plans 1
	4 Proposed Plans 2
	5 Design & Access Statement

	16 14/01077/FUL - 44 Potter Hill, Pickering
	2 Site Location plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Existing Plans
	5 Proposed Plans
	6 Plan Additional
	7 Design & Access Statement
	8 Incoming Document
	9 Parish

	17 14/01081/OUT - Land At Piercy End, Kirkbymoorside
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Plans
	4 Design & Access Statement
	5 Incoming Document
	6 Parish

	19 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	20 Update on Appeal Decisions
	2 Costs Decision


